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To the Shareholders of MidCarolina Financial Corporation

On behalf of your Board of Directors employees and management

team of MidCarolina Financial Corporation am pleased to present

the results of our work for 2009 Our performance reflects the difficult

environment in which we operated Your management focused on

commitment to fundamentals managing our existing portfolios expanding

our net interest margin and honing operating efficiencies

In this our 12th year total assets closed the
year at $541.0 million

reflecting modest increase when compared to assets at December 31 2008

Total loans net of mortgage loans held for resale were $438.1 million at

December 31 2009 an increase of $3.4 million from levels
year ago

Deposit totals at the end of the year were $465.0 million decrease of $2.9

million when compared to 2008 year-end balances

For the 12 month period ended December 31 2009 net income

available to common shareholders was $2.0 million compared to $3.3

million reported for the same period in 2008 Diluted earnings per common
share were $0.40 for the twelve months of 2009 compared to $0.66 for the

twelve months ended December 31 2008

In spite of the challenges faced during 2009 we remained profitable in each

quarter of the year This performance was accomplished during period

when many companies within our industry were unable to do so Significant

factors contributing to the years performance include an increase in net

interest income of $2.8 million off set by increases in FDIC premium

expense of $848000 and $2.8 million increase in the contribution to the

allowance for loan losses

While sectors of the economy are starting to show improvement we

recognize that 2010 may be difficult
year for some of our customers

the banking industry in general and the economy as whole Continued

material contributions to the allowance for loan losses may be forthcoming

as we work with our customer base and evaluate the risks in our portfolios

As we move into 2010 would like to express our sincere appreciation

to our shareholders and customer base for your support invite you to

visit one of our eight offices or our web based on-line banking system to

experience the difference in banking with MidCarolina

Sincerely

Charles Canaday Jr
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DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the Proxy Statement for the 2010 Aimual Meeting of Shareholders of MidCarolina Financial

Corporation to be held on May 25 2010 the Proxy Statement are incorporated by reference into Part III

Statement Regarding Forward Looking Statements

Statements in this Report and its exhibits relating to plans strategies economic performance and trends

projections of results ofspec4flc activities or investments expectations or beliefs about future events or

results and other statements that are not descriptions of historical facts may be forward-looking

statements as defined in Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 Forward-looking information is inherently subject to risks and uncertainties and

actual results could dffer materially from those currently anticipated due to number offactors which

include but are not limited to factors discussed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K and in other

documents we file with the Securities and Exchange Commissionfrom time to time Copies of those

reports are available directly through the SECS Internet website at www.sec.Rov or through our Internet

webs ite at www.midcarolinabankcom Forward-looking statements may be ident 4/led by terms such as

may will should could expects plans intends anticipates believes estimates

predicts forecasts potential or continue or similar terms or the negative of these terms or other

statements concerning opinions or judgments of our management about future events Factors that could

influence the accuracy offorward-looking statements include but are not limited to pressures on the

earnings capital and liquidity offinancial institutions resulting from current and future adverse

conditions in the credit and capital markets and the banking industry in general the financial success

or changing strategies of our customers actions ofgovernment regulators the level of market

interest rates and changes in general economic conditions and real estate values in our banking

market particularly changes that affect our loan portfolio the abilities of our borrowers to repay their

loans and the values of loan collateral Although we believe that the expectations reflected in the

forward-looking statements are reasonable they represent our managements judgments only as of the

date they are made and we cannot guarantee future results levels of activity performance or

achievements As result readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking

statements All forward-looking statements attributable to us are expressly qual4fled in their entirety by

the cautionary statements in this paragraph We have no obligation and do not intend to update these

forward-looking statements



PART

ITEM DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

General

MidCarolina Financial Corporation the Company was formed in 2002 to serve as holding company for

MidCarolina Bank the Bank The Company is registered with the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve

System the Federal Reserve under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956 as amended the BHCA and the

bank holding company laws of North Carolina The Companys office is located at 3101 South Church Street

Burlington North Carolina 27216 The Companys principal source of income is earnings on loans and investments

including any dividends that are declared and paid by the Bank on its capital stock

The Bank is incorporated under the laws of North Carolina and began operations on August 14 1997 as North

Carolina chartered commercial bank The Bank is engaged in general commercial banking primarily in Alamance

and Guilford Counties North Carolina and operates under the banking laws of North Carolina and the rules and

regulations of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation the FDIC

As North Carolina bank the Bank is subject to examination and regulation by the FDIC and the North Carolina

Commissioner of Banks the CommissionerThe Bank is further subject to certain regulations of the Federal

Reserve governing reserve requirements to be maintained against deposits and other matters The business and

regulation of the Bank are also subject to legislative changes from time to time See SUPERVISION AND

REGULATION

The Banks primary market area is Alamance County and Guilford County North Carolina The Banks main office

is located in Burlington North Carolina The Bank also has one full-service branch in Burlington NC one full-

service branch in Graham North Carolina two full-service branches in Greensboro North Carolina and one full-

service branch in Mebane North Carolina The Bank has limited service offices in the Alamance Regional Medical

Center and the Village of Brookwood Retirement Center both of which are located in Burlington The Banks loans

and deposits are primarily generated from the areas where its offices are located

The Banks primary sources of revenue are interest and fee income from its lending activities These lending

activities consist principally of originating commercial operating and working capital loans residential mortgage

loans home equity lines of credit other consumer loans and loans secured by commercial real estate The Banks

current lending strategy is to establish market share throughout Alamance and Guilford Counties with an emphasis

in Burlington Graham Greensboro and Mebane

Interest and dividend income from investment activities generally provide the second largest source of income to the

Bank after interest on loans During 2009 the Bank chose to manage its overall liquidity position by re-deploying

its funds into shorter duration securities

Deposits are the primary source of the Banks funds for lending and other investment purposes The Bank attracts

both short-term and long-term deposits from the general public by offering variety of accounts and rates The

Bank offers statement savings accounts negotiable order of withdrawal accounts money market demand accounts

non-interest-bearing accounts and fixed interest rate certificates with varying maturities The Bank also utilizes

alternative sources of funds such as brokered certificates of deposit and borrowings from the Federal Home Loan

Bank the FHLB of Atlanta Georgia

The Banks deposits are obtained primarily from its primary market area The Bank uses traditional marketing

methods to attract new customers and deposits including print media advertising and direct mailings Deposit flows

are greatly influenced by economic conditions the general level of interest rates competition and other factors

The Bank is the sole banking subsidiary of the Company Two trusts MidCarolina and MidCarolina Trust II were

formed as subsidiaries of the Company to facilitate the infusion of Trust Preferred Securities as form of non

dilutive equity into the Company The trusts are not consolithted in these financial statements The majority of the

Companys operations are located at the Bank level Throughout this Annual Report on Form 10-K results of

operations will be discussed on consolidated basis by referring to the Banks operations unless specific

reference is made to the Company and its operating results apart from the Bank



The Company experienced steady growth during its formative years since its formation in 1997 through 2008 2009

was year of nominal growth reflecting the economic distresses experienced by the financial industry as whole

The Banks assets totaled $541.0 million $540.8 million and $467.2 million as of December 31 2009 2008 and

2007 respectively The Company had net income available to common shareholders for the year ended December

31 2009 of $2.0 million or $0.40 per diluted share compared with $3.3 million or $0.66 per diluted share for the

year ended December 31 2008

At December 31 2009 the Company had total consolidated assets of $541.0 million net loans of $430.7 million

deposits of $465.0 million investment securities available-for-sale of $70.7 million and shareholders equity of

$40.2 million

Subsidiaries

Other than the Bank the Company has two trust subsidiaries MidCarolina and MidCarolina Trust II The Banks

only subsidiary MidCarolina Investments mc was dormant during 2009 MidCarolina Investments formerly

engaged in general securities brokerage and offered insurance and other fmancial services through contract

arrangement with third-party provider The Bank continues to offer these services through third-party provider

Employees

At December 31 2009 the Bank had 82 full-time equivalent employees

Competition and Market Area

The Bank faces strong competition both in attracting deposits and making real estate and other loans Its most direct

competition for deposits comes from commercial banks savings institutions and credit unions located in its primary

market area including large financial institutions that have greater fmancial and marketing resources available to

them At June 30 2009 there were 16 depository institutions with 50 offices in Alamance County The Bank had

deposit market share of 17.4% in Alamance County The Bank also faces additional significant competition for

investors funds from short-term money market securities and other corporate and government securities The ability

of the Bank to attract and retain savings deposits depends on its ability to generally provide rate of return liquidity

and risk comparable to that offered by competmg investment opportunities

The Banks competition for real estate loans is from savings institutions credit unions commercial banks and

mortgage banking companies It competes for loans primarily through the interest rates and loan fees it charges and

the efficiency and quality of services it provides borrowers Competition is increasing as result of the reduction of

restrictions on the interstate operations of financial institutions

The Banks primary market area is Alamance County The population of Alamance County is 148053 and the

median household income is $41922 Alamance County has diverse economy with no concentration in any one

specific industry Major businesses and industries in the area include LabCorp laboratory that provides

specialized testing services for the medical industry Alamance Health Services Elon University Honda Power

Equipment Manufacturing and GKN Automotive manufacturer of automobile drive shafts

Supervision and Regulation

The Companys and the Banks business and operations are subject to extensive federal and state governmental

regulation and supervision The following is summary of some of those basic statutes and regulations However it

is not complete discussion of all the laws that affect the Companys business and it is qual/Ied in its entirety by

reference to the particular statutory or regulatory provision or proposal being described

GeneraL The Company is bank holding company registered with the Federal Reserve Board the

FRB under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956 as amended the BHCA It is subject to supervision and

examination by and the regulations and reporting requirements of the FRB Under the BHCA bank holding

companys activities are limited to banking managing or controlling banks or engaging in other activities the FRB
determines are closely related and proper incident to banking or managing or controlling banks

The BHCA prohibits bank holding company from acquiring direct or indirect control of more than 5.0% of the

outstanding voting stock or substantially all of the assets of any financial institution or merging or consolidating

with another bank holding company or savings bank holding company without the FRBs prior approval



Additionally the BHCA generally prohibits bank holding companies from engaging in nonbanking activity or

acquiring ownership or control of more than 5.0% of the outstanding voting stock of any company that engages in

nonbanking activity unless that activity is determined by the FRB to be closely related and proper
incident to

banking In approving an application to engage in nonbanking activity the FRB must consider whether that

activity can reasonably be expected to produce benefits to the public such as greater convenience increased

competition or gains in efficiency that outweigh possible adverse effects such as undue concentration of resources

decreased or unfair competition conflicts of interest or unsound banking practices

The law imposes number of obligations and restrictions on bank holding companies and their insured bank

subsidiaries designed to minimize potential losses to depositors and the FDIC insurance funds For example if

bank holding companys insured bank subsidiary becomes undercapitalized the bank holding company is

required to guarantee the banks compliance subject to certain limits with the terms of any capital restoration plan

filed with its federal banking agency bank holding company is required to serve as source of fmancial strength

to its bank subsidiaries and to commit resources to support those banks in circumstances in which absent that

policy it might not do so Under the BHCA the FRB may require bank holding company to terminate any activity

or relinquish control of nonbank subsidiary if the FRB determines that the activity or control constitutes serious

risk to the financial soundness and stability of bank subsidiary of bank holding company

The Bank is an insured North Carolina-chartered bank Its deposits are insured under the FDICs Deposit Insurance

Fund and it is subject to supervision and examination by and the regulations and reporting requirements of the

FDIC and the Commissioner The Bank is not member of the Federal Reserve System

As an insured bank the Bank is prohibited from engaging as principal in an activity that is not permitted for

national banks unless the FDIC determines that the activity would pose no significant risk to the deposit

insurance fund and the Bank is in compliance with applicable capital standards Insured banks also are

prohibited generally from directly acquiring or retaining any equity investment of type or in an amount not

permitted for national banks

The Commissioner and the FDIC regulate all areas of the Banks business including its payment of dividends and

other aspects of its operations They conduct regular examinations of the Bank and the Bank must furnish periodic

reports to the Commissioner and the FDIC containing detailed fmancial and other information about its affairs The

Commissioner and the FDIC have broad powers to enforce laws and regulations that apply to the Bank and to

require corrective action of conditions that affect its safety and soundness These powers include among others

issuing cease and desist orders imposing civil penalties removing officers and directors and otherwise intervening

in the Banks operation and management if examinations of the Bank and the reports it files indicate the need to do

so

Under North Carolina banking laws if North Carolina banks capital stock becomes impaired by losses or other

causes and the banks surplus and undivided profits are insufficient to make good the impairment the

Commissioner may require the bank to make the impairment good by an assessment upon the banks stockholders

If any stockholder does not pay such assessment the banks board of directors must sell sufficient amount of the

banks stock held by that stockholder at public auction to make good the assessment on that stockholder

The Banks business also is influenced by prevailing economic conditions and governmental policies both foreign

and domestic and though it is not member bank of the Federal Reserve System by the monetary and fiscal

policies of the FRB The FRBs actions and policy directives determine to significant degree the cost and

availability of funds the Bank obtains from money market sources for lending and investing and they also

influence directly and indirectly the rates of interest the Bank pays on its time and savings deposits and the rates it

charges on commercial bank loans

Gramm-Leach-Bffley Act The federal Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act enacted in 1999 the GLB Act
dramatically changed various federal laws governing the banking securities and insurance industries The GLB Act

permitted bank holding companies to become financial holding companies and in general expanded

opportunities to affiliate with securities firms and insurance companies overrode certain state laws that would

prohibit certain banking and insurance affiliations expanded the activities in which banks and bank holding

companies may participate requires that banks and bank holding companies engage in some activities only

through affiliates owned or managed in accordance with certain requirements and reorganized responsibility

among various federal regulators for oversight of certain securities activities conducted by banks and bank holding

companies



Payment of Dividends Under North Carolina law the Company is authorized to pay dividends as

declared by its Board of Directors provided that no such distribution results in the Companys insolvency on

going concern or balance sheet basis However although the Company is legal entity separate and distinct from

the Bank its principal source of funds with which it can pay dividends to its shareholders is dividends it receives

from the Bank For that reason the Companys ability to pay dividends effectively is subject to the same limitations

that apply to the Bank

In general the Bank may pay dividends only from its undivided profits However if its surplus is less than 50% of

its paid-in capital stock the Banks directors may not declare any cash dividend until it has transferred to surplus

25% of its undivided profits or any lesser percentage necessaiy to raise its surplus to an amount equal to 50% of its

paid-in capital stock

Federal law prohibits the Bank from making any capital distributions including paying cash dividend if it is or

after making the distribution it would become undercapitalized as that term is defined in the Federal Deposit

Insurance Act the FDIA Also if in the FDICs opinion an insured bank under its jurisdiction is engaged in or is

about to engage in an unsafe or unsound practice the FDIC may require after notice and hearing that the bank

cease and desist from that practice The FDIC has indicated that paying dividends that deplete banks capital base

to an inadequate level would be an unsafe and unsound banking practice See Prompt Corrective Action

below The FDIC has issued policy statements which provide that insured banks generally should pay dividends

only out of their current operating earnings Also under the FDIA no dividend may be paid by an FDIC-insured

bank while it is in default on any assessment due the FDIC The Banks payment of dividends also may be affected

or limited by other factors such as events or circumstances that lead the FDIC to require the Bank to maintain its

capital above regulatory guidelines

In the future the Companys ability to declare and pay cash dividends will be subject to its Board of Directors

evaluation of its operating results capital levels financial condition future growth plans general business and

economic conditions and other relevant considerations

Capital Adequacy The Company and the Bank are required to comply with the FRBs and FDICs

capital adequacy standards for bank holding companies and insured banks The FRB and FDIC have issued risk-

based capital and leverage capital guidelines for measuring capital adequacy and all applicable capital standards

must be satisfied for us or the Bank to be considered in compliance with regulatory capital requirements

Under the risk-based capital guidelines the minimum ratio Total Capital Ratio of an entitys total capital Total

Capital to its risk-weighted assets including certain off-balance-sheet items such as standby letters of credit is

8.0% At least half of Total Capital must be composed of Tier Capital Tier Capital includes common equity

undivided profits minority interests in the equity accounts of consolidated subsidiaries qualifying noncumulative

perpetual preferred stock and limited amount of cumulative perpetual preferred stock less goodwill and certain

other intangible assets The remaining Total Capital may consist of Tier Capital which includes certain

subordinated debt certain hybrid capital instruments and other qualifying preferred stock and limited amount of

loan loss reserves bank or bank holding company that does not satisfy minimum capital requirements may be

required to adopt and implement plan acceptable to its federal banking regulator to achieve an adequate level of

capital

Under the leverage capital measure the minimum ratio the Leverage Capital Ratio of Tier Capital to average

assets less goodwill and various other intangible assets is 3.0% for entities that meet specified criteria including

having the highest regulatory rating All other entities generally are required to maintain an additional cushion of

100 to 200 basis points above the stated minimum The guidelines also provide that banks experiencing internal

growth or making acquisitions will be expected to maintain strong capital positions substantially above the

minimum levels without significant reliance on intangible assets banks Tangible Leverage Ratio deducting

all intangibles and other indicators of capital strength also will be taken into consideration by banking regulators in

evaluating proposals for expansion or new activities

The FRB and the FDIC also consider interest rate risk when the interest rate sensitivity of an institutions assets

does not match the sensitivity of its liabilities or its off-balance-sheet position in evaluating capital adequacy

Banks with excessive interest rate risk exposure must hold additional amounts of capital against their exposure to

losses resulting from that risk The regulators also require banks to incorporate market risk components into their

risk-based capital Under these market risk requirements capital is allocated to support the amount of market risk

related to banks trading activities



Capital categories of financial institutions are determined only for the purpose of applying the prompt corrective

action rules described below which have been adopted by the various federal banking regulators and they do not

necessarily constitute an accurate representation of overall financial condition or prospects for other purposes

failure to meet capital guidelines could subject the the Bank to variety of enforcement remedies under those rules

including issuance of capital directive termination of FDIC deposit insurance prohibition on taking brokered

deposits and other restrictions on the Banks business As described below substantial additional restrictions can be

imposed on banks that fail to meet applicable capital requirements

Prompt Corrective Action Federal law establishes system of prompt corrective action to resolve the

problems of undercapitalized banks Under this system the FDIC has established five capital categories well

capitalized adequately capitalized undercapitalized significantly undercapitalized and critically

undercapitalized and it is required to take various supervisory actions and is authorized to take other discretionary

actions with respect to banks in the three undercapitalized categories The severity of any actions taken will depend

on the capital category in which bank is placed Generally subject to narrow exception current federal law

requires the FDIC to appoint receiver or conservator for bank that is critically undercapitalized

Under the FDICs rules implementing the prompt corrective action provisions an insured state-chartered bank that

has Total Capital Ratio of 10.0% or greater Tier Capital Ratio of 6.0% or greater and Leverage Ratio of

5.0% or greater and is not subject to any written agreement order capital directive or prompt corrective action

directive issued by the FDIC is considered well capitalized bank with Total Capital Ratio of 8.0% or greater

Tier Capital Ratio of 4.0% or greater and Leverage Ratio of 4.0% or greater is considered adequately

capitalized bank that has Total Capital Ratio of less than 8.0% Tier Capital Ratio of less than 4.0% or

Leverage Ratio of less than 4.0% is considered undercapitalized bank that has Total Capital Ratio of less

than 6.0% Tier Capital Ratio of less than 3.0% or Leverage Ratio of less than 3.0% is considered

significantly undercapitalized and bank that has tangible equity capital to assets ratio equal to or less than

2.0% is considered critically undercapitalized For purposes of these rules the term tangible equity includes

core capital elements counted as Tier Capital for purposes of the risk-based capital standards see Capital

Adequacy above plus the amount of outstanding cumulative perpetual preferred stock including related surplus

minus all intangible assets with various exceptions bank may be deemed to be in lower capitalization category

than indicated by its actual capital position if it receives an unsatisfactory examination rating

bank categorized as undercapitalized significantly undercapitalized or critically undercapitalized is

required to submit an acceptable capital restoration plan to the FDIC An undercapitalized bank also is generally

prohibited from increasing its average total assets making acquisitions establishing new branches or engaging in

new lines of business other than in accordance with an accepted capital restoration plan or with the FDICs

approval Also the FDIC may treat an undercapitalized bank as being significantly undercapitalized if it

determines that is necessary to carry out the purpose of the law On December 31 2009 the Banks capital ratios

were at levels to qualif it as well capitalized

Reserve Requirements Under the FRBs regulations all FDIC-insured banks must maintain average

daily reserves against their transaction accounts As of January 2010 no reserves are required on the first $10.7

million of transaction accounts but bank must maintain reserves equal to 3.0% on aggregate balances between

$10.7 million and $55.2 million and reserves equal to 10.0% on aggregate balances in excess of $55.2 million The

FRB may adjust these percentages
from time to time Because the Banks reserves must be maintained in the form of

vault cash or in an account at Federal Reserve Bank or with qualified correspondent bank one effect of the

reserve requirement is to reduce the amount of the Banks assets that are available for lending and other investment

activities

Federal Deposit Insurance The Banks deposits are insured by the FDIC to the full extent provided in

the Federal Deposit Insurance Act and the Bank pays assessments to the FDIC for that insurance coverage Under

the Act the FDIC may terminate the Banks deposit insurance if it finds that the Bank has engaged in unsafe and

unsound practices is in an unsafe or unsound condition to continue operations or has violated applicable laws

regulations rules or orders

The Federal Deposit Insurance Reform Act of 2005 FDIRA changed the Federal deposit insurance system by

among other things

merging the Bank Insurance Fund and Savings Association Insurance Fund into new Deposit

Insurance Fund the DIF



raising the level of Federal deposit insurance coverage for retirement accounts to $250000

establishing range
of 1.15% to 1.50% within which the FDIC must set and maintain the required

reserve ratio for the DIF

requiring that if the DIF reserve ratio falls or within six months is expected to fall below the

statutorily required minimum of 1.15% the FDIC must adopt restoration plan that provides for

the DIF to be restored and

eliminating restrictions on premium rates based on the DIF reserve ratio and giving the FDIC
discretion to price deposit insurance according to the risk posed to the DIF by each insured

institution regardless of the DIF reserve ratio

During October 2008 the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 temporarily raised the basic limit on

federal deposit insurance coverage for all accounts from $100000 to $250000 per depositor until December 31
2009 During May 2009 that increased coverage was extended until December 31 2013 at which time it will

return to $100000 for all accounts other than retirement accounts for which FDIRA permanently increased the basic

coverage to $250000

FDIC Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program During 2008 the FDIC implemented its Temporary

Liquidity Guarantee Program TLGP which applies to among others all U.S depository institutions insured by
the FDIC and all U.S bank holding companies unless they have opted out of the TLGP or the FDIC has terminated

their participation The Bank chose to participate in the TLGP Under the original terms of the transaction account

guarantee component of the TLGP all noninterest-bearing transaction accounts would be insured in full by the

FDIC until December 31 2009 regardless of the standard maximum deposit insurance amount During August

2009 the FDIC extended the transaction account guarantee component of the TLGP through June 30 2010

FDIC lasurance Assessments Under FDIRA the FDIC uses risk-based assessment system to

determine the amount of the Banks deposit insurance assessment based on an evaluation of the probability that the

Bank will cause loss to the DIF That evaluation takes into consideration risks attributable to different categories

and concentrations of the Banks assets and liabilities and any other factors the FDIC considers relevant including

information obtained from the Commissioner higher assessment rate results in an increase in the deposit

insurance assessments paid by the Bank

The FDIC is responsible for maintaining the adequacy of the DIF and the amount the Bank pays for deposit

insurance is influenced not only by the assessment of the risk it
poses to the DIF but also by the adequacy of the

insurance fund at any time to cover the risk posed by all insured institutions FDIC insurance assessments could be

increased substantially in the future if the FDIC fmds such an increase to be
necessary in order to adequately

maintain the insurance fund

During 2008 and because the DIF reserve ratio had fallen below the minimum of 1.15% mandated by FDIRA the

Board of Directors of the FDIC adopted restoration plan to return the reserve ratio to that minimum level required

by FDIRA within five years During February 2009 the Board amended its restoration plan to provide for the

minimum DIF reserve ratio to be restored within seven years and voted to impose special assessment on insured

institutions of 20 basis points and to increase regular assessment rates for 2009 However during May 2009 the

special assessment was reduced to basis points on each insured institutions assets minus its Tier capital as of

June 30 2009 but not more than 10 basis points of the institutions assessment base for the second quarter of 2009
The special assessment was payable on September 30 2009

During October 2009 the FDIC again amended its restoration plan to provide for the minimum DIF reserve ratio to

be restored within eight years and adopted uniform basis point increase in regular assessment rates effective

January 2011 During November 2009 the FDIC amended its regulations to require that insured institutions

prepay their estimated quarterly risk-based assessments for the fourth quarter of 2009 and for all of 2010 2011 and

2012 on December 30 2009



Restrictions on Transactions with Affiliates The Bank is subject to the provisions of Section 23A of the

Federal Reserve Act which among other things limits the amount of

banks loans or extensions of credit to or investment in its affiliates

assets bank may purchase from affiliates except for real and personal property exempted by the

FRB

the amount of banks loans or extensions of credit to third parties collateralized by securities or

obligations of the banks affiliates and

banks issuance of guarantee acceptance or letter of credit for its affiliates

The total amount of these transactions is limited in amount as to any one affiliate to 10% of banks capital and

surplus and as to all affiliates to 20% of banks capital and surplus In addition to the limitation on the amount of

these transactions each of the above transactions must also meet specified collateral requirements The Bank also

must comply with other provisions under Section 23A designed to prevent the Banks taking of low-quality assets

from an affiliate

The Bank also is subject to the provisions of Section 23B of the Federal Reserve Act which among other things

prohibit bank or its subsidiaries generally from engaging in transactions with its affiliates unless those transactions

are on terms substantially the same or at least as favorable to the bank or its subsidiaries as would apply in

comparable transactions with nonaffiliated companies

Federal law also restricts the Banks ability to extend credit to its and the Companys executive officers directors

principal shareholders and their related interests These credit extensions must be made on substantially the same

terms including interest rates and collateral as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with

unrelated third parties and must not involve more than the normal risk of repayment or present other

unfavorable features

Interstate Banking and Branching The Bank Holding Company Act as amended by the interstate

banking provisions of the Riegle-Neal Interstate Banking and Branching Efficiency Act of 1994 the Interstate

Banking Law permits adequately capitalized and managed bank holding companies to acquire control of the

assets of banks in any state Acquisitions are subject to provisions that cap at 10.0% the portion of the total deposits

of insured depositoiy institutions in the United States that single bank holding company may control and

generally cap at 30.0% the portion of the total deposits of insured depository institutions in state that single bank

holding company may control Under certain circumstances states have the authority to increase or decrease the

30.0% cap and states may set minimum age requirements of up to five years on target banks within their borders

Subject to certain conditions the Interstate Banking Law also permits interstate branching by allowing bank in

one state to merge with bank located in different state Each state was allowed to prohibit interstate branching in

that state by merger by enacting legislation to that effect The Interstate Banking Law also permits banks to establish

branches in other states by opening new branches or acquiring existing branches of other banks provided the laws

of those other states specifically permit that form of interstate branching North Carolina has adopted statutes which

subject to conditions authorize out-of-state bank holding companies and banks to acquire or merge with North

Carolina banks and to establish or acquire branches in North Carolina

Community Reinvestment Under the Community Reinvestment Act the CRA an insured bank has

continuing and affirmative obligation consistent with its safe and sound operation to help meet the credit needs of

its entire community including low and moderate income neighborhoods The CRA does not establish specific

lending requirements or programs for banks nor does it limit banks discretion to develop consistent with the

CRA the types of products and services it believes are best suited to its particular community The CRA requires

the federal banking regulators in their examinations of insured banks to assess the banks records of meeting the

credit needs of their communities using the ratings of outstanding satisfactory needs to improve or

substantial noncompliance and to take that record into account in its evaluation of various applications by those

banks All banks are required to make public disclosure of their CRA performance ratings The Bank received

satisfactory rating in its last CRA examination during 2007



USA Patriot Act of 2001 The USA Patriot Act of 2001 was enacted in response to the terrorist attacks

that occurred in the United States on September 11 2001 The Act strengthened the ability of U.S law enforcement

and the intelligence community to work cohesively to combat terrorism on variety of fronts The Acts impact on
all financial institutions is significant and wide ranging The Act contains sweeping anti-money laundering and

financial transparency requirements and imposes various other regulatory requirements including standards for

verifying customer identification at account opening and rules promoting cooperation among fmancial institutions

regulators and law enforcement agencies in identifying parties that may be involved in terrorism or money
laundering

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 became effective on July 30 2002 It

addressed accounting corporate governance and disclosure issues and imposed significant requirements on all

public companies Some provisions of the Act became effective immediately while others are still being

implemented

In general the Sarbanes-Oxley Act mandated important corporate governance and fmancial reporting requirements

intended to enhance the accuracy and transparency of public companies reported financial results It established

specific responsibilities for corporate chief executive officers chief financial officers and audit committees in the

financial reporting process and it created regulatory body to oversee auditors of public companies It enhanced

SEC enforcement tools criminal penalties for federal mail wire and securities fraud and criminal penalties for

document and record destruction in connection with federal investigations It also lengthened the statute of

limitations for securities fraud claims and provided new corporate whistleblower protection

The economic and operational effects of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act on public companies including the company have

been and will continue to be significant in tenns of the time resources and costs associated with compliance
Because the Act for the most part applies equally to larger and smaller public companies the Company will

continue to be presented with additional challenges as smaller community-oriented financial institution seeking to

compete with larger financial institutions in its markets

Available Information

The Company makes its Annual Report on Form 10-K Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q Current Reports

on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports available free of charge on its internet website

www.midcarolinabank.com as soon as reasonably practicable after the reports are electronically filed with the SEC

Any materials that the Company files with the SEC may be read and/or copied at the SECs Public Reference Room
at 100 Street NE Washington DC 20549 Information on the operation of the Public Reference room may be

obtained by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 These filings are also accessible on the SECs website at

www.sec.gov

ITEM DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

The Bank owns its main office which is located at 3101 South Church Street in Burlington as well as its full-

service branch offices located at 5509-A West Friendly Avenue Suite 102 Greensboro North Carolina and 842

South Main Street Graham North Carolina The Bank leases its full-service offices located at Cum-Park Plaza

2214 North Church Street Burlington 703 Suite 101 Green Valley Road Greensboro and 1107 South Fifth Street

Mebane North Carolina The Bank occupies space in the Alamance Regional Medical Center in Burlington from

which it operates limited-service office as well as limited-service office located in the Village of Brookwood

Retirement Center located in Burlington

The total net book value of the Banks furniture fixtures leasehold improvements land buildings and equipment at

December 31 2009 was approximately $7.1 million All properties are considered by the Banks management to be

in good condition and adequately covered by insurance Additional information about this property is set forth in

Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements contained in Item of this Annual Report on Form 10-K which

note is incorporated herein by reference
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ITEM LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

As previously disclosed in our 2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K on July 22 2008 the Company and the Bank

filed civil action in the Superior Court of Alamance County North Carolina against their former President and

ChiefExecutive Officer whose employment was tenninated for cause during 2007 The Companys lawsuit alleged

claims which involved amounts that were not material to the Companys financial condition or results of

operations On July 24 2008 the former officer filed claim for arbitration pursuant to his employment agreement

with the Bank disputing that there was cause for the termination of his employment and seeking to be paid

additional salary and benefits under the agreement and other compensatory agreements between him and the Bank

On December 31 2009 the former officer voluntarily dismissed the arbitration proceeding with prejudice On

January 19 2010 the Bank voluntarily dismissed its civil action Those dismissals resolved all matters between the

parties that were the subject of those proceedings No payments were made by either party to the other in

connection with the dismissals

PART II

ITEM MARKET FOR COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS

AND SMALL BUSINESS ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

There currently is limited trading market for the Companys common stock and there can be no assurance that

more active market will develop The Companys common stock is traded in the over-the-counter markets with

prices for the stock being published on the OTC Bulletin Board under the symbol MCFI There were 1671

stockholders of record as of January 29 2010 not including the persons or entities whose stock is held in nominee

or street name and by various banks and brokerage firms

The table below presents the high and low closing prices for the Companys common stock as published on the

OTC Bulletin Board for each quarter in the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 The prices in the table have

been adjusted to reflect declared stock splits in the form of stock dividends in 2007

High Low

2009

First quarter
7.50 4.05

Second quarter
7.00 4.50

Third quarter 7.10 5.25

Fourth quarter
6.35 4.00

2008

Firstquarter 11.55 10.00

Secondquarter $11.20 8.57

Third quarter
10.10 8.00

Fourthquarter 9.60 7.00

11



Since it was organized in 2002 the Company has retained its earnings as additional capital to support growth in its

earning assets and it has not paid any cash dividends on its common stock Information regarding regulatory
restrictions on the Companys and the Banks abilities to pay cash dividends is contain in this report under the

captions ITEM DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS -- Supervision and Regulation above and in NOTE to the

Companys financial statements included in this Report under Item Although the Company is legal entity

separate and distinct from the Bank the Companys principal source of funds with which it could pay cash

dividends would be the dividends the Company receives from the Bank For that reason the Companys ability to

pay dividends effectively is subject to the same limitations that apply to the Bank In the future in addition to the

regulatory considerations referenced above the Companys ability to declare and pay cash dividends will be subject

to the Board of Directors evaluation of the Companys and the Banks operating results capital levels financial

condition future growth plans general business and economic conditions and other relevant considerations as well

as to changes in applicable statutes regulations or regulatory policies that could have material effect on the

Companys and the Banks business

Recent Repurchase of Companys Securities

The Company did not repurchase any of its securities in the last quarter of the fiscal year ending December 31
2009
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ITEM SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth certain summary consolidated financial data performance ratios and other

data at or for the periods indicated As this information is only summary you should read it in conjunction

with the historical financial statements and related notes of the Company and Item Managements

Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

MidCarolina Financial Corporation

Table

Selected Consolidated Financial Information and Other Data

in thousands except per share and nonfinancial data

At or for the Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Operating Data

Total mterest income 27583 29616 31053 27061 19208

Total interest expense 10440 15294 17721 14241 8327

Net interest income 17143 14322 13332 12820 10881

Provision for loan losses 4455 1665 425 394 1373

Net interest income after provision 12688 12657 12907 12426 9508

Noninterest income 2787 2220 2627 2304 2683

Noninterest expense 12281 9462 8305 9077 8546

Income before income taxes 3194 5415 7229 5653 3645

Provision for income taxes 818 1741 2342 1757 1277

Net income 2376 3674 4887 3896 2368

Dividends on preferred stock 417 417 417 417 104

Net income available to common shareholders 1959 3257 4470 3479 2264

Per Share Data

Earnings per common share basic 0.40 0.66 0.98 0.80 0.53

Earnings per common share diluted 0.40 0.66 0.92 0.73 0.48

Market price

High 7.50 11.55 19.60 18.18 12.37

Low 4.00 7.00 9.00 10.51 8.44

Close 4.62 7.50 9.50 15.80 10.36

Book value common shares 7.23 6.57 6.13 5.20 4.25

Weighted average common shares outstanding

Basic 4927828 4915350 4548565 4348128 4299522

Diluted 4930310 4916876 4851738 4775853 4669601

Selected Year-End Balance Sheet Data

Total assets 541004 540847 467186 420850 370440

Loans held to maturity 438087 434662 371714 313572 279962

Allowance for loan losses 7307 5632 4462 4222 4090

Deposits 465020 467948 373897 339275 300262

Short-term borrowings 520 19000 25000 10000

Long-term debt 33764 33764 38764 26764 34764

Shareholders equity 40185 37143 33150 28259 23093

Selected Average Balances

Total assets 550607 506581 447442 397514 329395

Loans net 441704 405119 344620 301405 252914

Total interest-earning assets 523692 486979 427142 379168 309935

Deposits 475012 425790 370128 329724 264730

Total interest-bearing liabilities 467372 432436 380288 338283 280412

Shareholders equity 38614 35830 29901 24550 19743

Shareholders equity less average preferred equity 33795 31011 25082 19731 17910
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MidCarolina Financial Corporation

Table

Selected Consolidated Financial Information and Other Data

In thousands except per share and nonfinancial data

At or for the Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Selected Performance Ratios

Return on average assets 0.43% 0.73% 1.09% 0.98% 0.72%

Return on average equity excluding preferred equity 5.80% 10.50% 1782% 17.63% 12.64%

Netinterestspread 3.03% 2.54% 2.61% 2.93% 3.23%

Net interest margin 3.27% 2.94% 3.12% 3.38% 3.51%

Noninterest income to total net revenue 13.98% 16.14% 16.46% 15.23% 19.78%

Noninterest income to average assets 0.51% 0.54% 0.59% 0.58% 0.81%

Noninterest expense to average assets 2.23% 1.97% 1.86% 2.28% 2.59%

Asset Quality Ratios

Nonperforming loans to period-end loans 1.68% 0.72% 0.19% 0.25% 008%
Allowance for loan lOSSeS to period-end loans 1.67% 1.30% 1.20% 1.35% 1.46%

Allowance for loan losses to nonperforniing loans 99.50% 180.34% 637.43% 53 1.74% 1725.74%

Nonperforming assets to total assets 1.89% 0.88% 0.2 1% 0.74% 0.83%

Net loan charge-offs to average loans 0.63% 012% 005% 0.05% 0.09%

Capital Ratios

Totalrisk-basedcapital 11.93% 11.19% 11.48% 11.28% 11.34%

Tier risk-based capital 1067% 9.97% 10.37% 10.12% 9.90%

Leverage ratio 8.79% 8.68% 8.95% 8.73% 8.64%

Equity to assets ratio 7.43% 6.87% 7.10% 6.7 1% 6.23%

Other Data

Number of banking offices

Number of full time equivalent employees 82 79 77 71 69

All per share data has been restated to reflect the effects of stock split effected in the form of 25% stock dividend in 2005
stock

split effected in the form of 10% stock dividend in 2006 and 25% split effected dividend in January 2007
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ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The discussion and analysis that follows is intended to assist readers in the understanding and evaluation of the

financial condition and results of operations of the Company It should be read in conjunction with the audited

consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and

the supplemental financial data appearing throughout this discussion and analysis Because the Companys

primary asset is the Bank the discussion that follows focuses on the Banks business and operations

EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW

Sign flcant accomplishments

In the opinion of its management the Companys most significant accomplishments during 2009 which are

discussed in more detail in this Item were as follows

Reduced concentration of wholesale funding by $24.1 million or 11.6%

Reduced concentration of construction loan portfolio by 26.4% or $24.3 million

Average non-interest bearing deposits increased 18.2%

Improved interest margin to 3.27% from 2.94%

Challenges

The Bank has achieved significant growth without the advent of acquisitions or mergers since first opening its doors

in 1997 The fmancial industry in general is faced with many uncertainties and challenges As management plans its

strategic goals and objectives future expectations of economic activity and how these uncertainties could impact

the Companys perfonnance must be taken into consideration The challenges that we believe are most likely to

have an impact on the operations of the Company in the foreseeable future are presented below

Sustaining profitable growth

Managing margins in an abnormally low interest rate environment

Competition from bank and non-bank entities including fierce price competition

Uncertainty of real estate values

Obtaining adequate funding of asset growth

Maintaining liquidity during an uncertain economic environment

Managing equity in an unpredictable capital market

Managing asset quality during period of economic uncertainty

SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND OTHER DATA

Selected Consolidated Financial Information and Other Data are presented in Table of Item The information in

this table is derived in part from the audited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto of the Company
The information in this table does not purport to be complete and should be read in conjunction with the Companys

consolidated fmancial statements that are included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K

FINANCIAL CONDITION
DECEMBER 31 2009 AND 2008

The Companys total assets totaled $541.0 million at year-end 2009 modest increase of $157000 or .03% when

compared to year-end 2008 Loans excluding those held for sale increased by $3.4 million or 0.78% from $434.7

million at the beginning of the year to $438.1 million at year end The change in loans was composed principally of

increases of $18.6 million in commercial mortgage loans $7.8 million in residential mortgage loans including

income producing properties and $934000 in commercial and industrial loans offset by decreases of $24.4 million

in construction loans and $923000 in loans to individuals all of which are segments of lending the Company

targets and intends to continue targeting in the future Investment securities decreased by $405000 or 0.57% from

$71.1 million to $70.7 million Liquid assets consisting of cash and demand balances due from banks interest

earning deposits in other banks and investment securities were 14.82% of total assets at December 31 2009 and

16.05% at December 31 2008 The Bank as member of the FHLB of Atlanta has an investment of $2.3 million

in FHLB stock The Banks investment in life insurance used to offset the cost of employee benefit plans increased

by $286 thousand during 2009 to $8.3 million The increase was due to an increase in the cash surrender value of
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the policies Other assets increased $4.6 million over 2008 The components of other assets that incurred significant

change include other real estate owned which increased $1.3 million or 78.0% over 2008 year-end reflecting the

distressed economy affecting the industry prepaid expense increased $3.0 million from 2008 year-end resulting

from 3-year prepayment of FDIC insurance premiums paid December 2009

Deposits decreased modest $2.9 million during 2009 However the mix of deposits showed significant

improvement as total transactional accounts comprised of noninterest-bearing demand accounts and interest-bearing

demand accounts increased $65.1 million or 53.60% from $121.4 million at December 31 2008 to $186.5 million

at December 31 2009 Individually noninterest-bearing demand accounts decreased $1.4 million or 3.34% interest

bearing demand accounts increased 66.5 million or 84.94% savings accounts increased $2.5 million or 42.9 1%
and time deposits decreased $70.5 million or 20.69% over the amount of these deposits at December 31 2008 The

Bank also used wholesale brokered certificates of deposit and advances from the FHLB of Atlanta Georgia as

funding sources during 2009 to serve as secondary source of funding asset growth Borrowings from the FHLB
remained unchanged at $25.0 million at December 31 2009 Wholesale brokered certificates of deposit decreased

$21.0 million or 17.03% and comprised approximately 22.02% of total deposit balances Typically brokered

certificates of deposit have similar terms to retail certificates of deposit issued in the Banks local markets with

rates marginally lower than local market certificates of deposit rates

Total shareholders equity increased by $3.0 million or 8.04% during 2009 All capital ratios continue to place the

Company and the Bank in excess of the minimum required to be well-capitalized institution by regulatory

measures The Company issued $4.8 million in Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock on August 15 2005 and

$8.5 million in Trust Preferred Securities during prior years so as to remain well capitalized under regulatory

capital guidelines without diluting existing shareholders ownership The Trust Preferred Securities and Preferred

Stock should provide sufficient capital to retain well-capitalized designation as defined by regulatory capital

guidelines for the foreseeable future The Trust Preferred Securities qualify as Tier regulatory capital and are

reported in Federal Reserve regulatory reports as qualifying security in consolidated subsidiary The junior

subordinated debentures issued to guarantee the Trust Preferred Securities do not qualify as Tier regulatory

capital On July 2003 the Federal Reserve issued letter SR 03-13 stating that notwithstanding any potential

implications FASB Accounting Standards CodificationTM ASC Topic 810 may have on reporting trust preferred

securities on financial statements trust preferred securities will continue to be included in Tier capital until notice

is given to the contrary There can be no assurance that the Federal Reserve will continue to allow institutions to

include trust-preferred securities in Tier capital for regulatory capital purposes In the event of disallowance

there would be reduction in the Companys consolidated capital ratios However the Company believes that the

Bank would remain well capitalized under FDIC guidelines

NET INTEREST INCOME

Similar to most financial institutions the primary component of earnings for the Bank is net interest income Net

interest income is the difference between interest income principally from the loan and investment securities

portfolios and interest expense principally on deposits and borrowings Changes in net interest income result from

changes in volume spread and margin For this purpose volume refers to the average dollar level of interest-

earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities spread refers to the difference between the average yield on interest-

earning assets and the average cost of interest-bearing liabilities and margin refers to net interest income divided

by average interest-earning assets and is influenced by the level and relative mix of interest-earning assets and

interest-bearing liabilities as well as levels of non-interest-bearing liabilities During the years ended December 31

2009 2008 and 2007 average interest-earning assets were $523.7 million $487.0 million and $427.1 million

respectively During these same years the Banks net yields on average interest-earning assets were 3.27% 2.94%

and 3.12% respectively The increase in net yields from 2008 to 2009 is reflection of the dramatic decrease in

interest rates over the year An overall increase in spread which is the difference between yields earned on interest

bearing assets less the interest paid on interest bearing liabilities was strongly influenced by the Banks concerted

effort to increase lower cost transactional accounts during 2009 The Banks balance sheet is well positioned for

changes in interest rates When interest rates change the Banks earnings and net yields remain stable as the Banks

ratio of interest-earning assets to interest-bearing liabilities is well matched under all interest rate environments and

time periods measured by the Bank

Table following this discussion Average Balances and Net Interest Income presents an analysis of the Banics

net interest income for 2009 2008 and 2007

16



Table following this discussion Volume and Rate Variance Analysis shows the amounts of changes in net

interest income due to changes in volume and rates and illustrates that the change in the average rate of loans was

offset by the decrease in average deposit rates These two variables were the predominant factors in the higher

amount of net interest income realized by the Bank in 2009 when compared to 2008

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2009 AND 2008

Overview The Company reported net income available to common shareholders of $2.0 million or $0.40 per

diluted common share for the year ended December 31 2009 compared with net income available to shareholders

of $3.3 million or $0.66 per diluted common share for 2008 decrease of$1.3 million or $0.26 per diluted share

Net Interest Income Net interest income increased to $17.1 million for the year ended December 31 2009 $2.8

million or 19.70% increase from the $14.3 million earned in 2008 Total interest income benefited from moderate

growth in the level of average earning assets offset by significantly lower liability yields caused by historically low

interest rates during the year The rates earned on significant portion of the Banks loans adjust immediately when

indexes like the prime rate change Conversely large portion of interest-bearing liabilities including certificates of

deposit and Bank borrowings have rates fixed until maturity As result interest rate reductions will generally

result in an immediate drop in the Banks interest income on loans with more delayed impact on interest expense

because reductions in interest costs will only occur upon renewals of certificates of deposit or borrowings Interest

rate increases will generally result in an immediate increase in the Banks interest income on loans with more

delayed impact on interest expense because increases in interest costs will only occur upon renewals of certificates

of deposit or borrowings Average total interest-earning assets increased $36.7 million or 7.53% during 2009

compared to 2008 while the average yield decreased by 81 basis points from 6.08% to 5.27% As interest rates

remained very low during 2009 the average rate on loans repriced and decreased year over year The average rate

on investment securities decreased in 2009 compared to 2008 reflecting the lower reinvestment yields available for

securities purchased or reinvested during the year Average total interest-bearing liabilities increased by $34.9

million or 8.07% slightly higher growth rate than average interest-earning asset balances The average cost of

interest-bearing liabilities decreased by 131 basis points from 3.54% to 2.23% With the cost on interest bearing

liabilities decreasing more significantly than the yield on earning assets the Banks net interest margin increased by

33 basis points For the year
ended December 31 2009 the net interest margin was 3.27% while for the

year
ended

December 31 2008 the net interest margin was 2.94% Table reflects the volume and rate variances from 2009

vs 2008

Provision for Loan Losses The Bank recorded $4.5 million in the provision for loan losses in 2009 an increase of

$2.8 million from the $1.7 million provision made in 2008 Provisions for loan losses are charged to income to

bring the allowance for loan losses to level deemed appropriate by management In evaluating the allowance for

loan losses management considers factors that include growth composition and industry diversification of the

portfolio historical loan loss experience current delinquency levels adverse situations that may affect borrowers

ability to repay estimated value of any underlying collateral prevailing economic conditions and other relevant

factors For 2009 large provisions were made each quarter in response to the weakened economy and real estate

market Specifically builder/construction loans experienced significant deterioration in their collateral values and

many developers experienced decreased rates of building lot inventory turn-over Although the bank reduced its

total exposure to construction loans by $24.3 million or 26.4% from $91.9 million at December 31 2008 to $67.6

million at December 31 2009 significant risk to property value depreciation continues to persist in the Companys

construction loan portfolio Real estate developers ability to service debt for extended time periods remains

tentative as cash flows have deteriorated Total loans outstanding net of loans held for sale increased by $3.4

million in 2009 and by $62.9 million in 2008 At December 31 2009 the allowance for loan losses was $7.3

million an increase of $1.7 million or 29.74% from the $5.6 million at the end of 2008 The allowance represented

1.66% and 1.30% respectively of loans outstanding at the end of 2009 and 2008 net of loans held for sale The

increase in the allowance is reflective of the on going economic and real estate market deterioration experienced

locally as well as nationally and internationally At December 31 2009 the Bank had $7.3 million in non-accrual

loans In 2008 the Bank had $3.1 million in non-accrual loans For more detailed discussion of the provision of loan

losses and the established reserve see the section entitled Analysis of Allowance for Loan Losses

Non-Interest Income Non-interest income increased to $2.8 million for the year
ended December 31 2009

compared to $2.2 million for the year ended December 31 2008 an increase of $567000 or 25.54% significant

factor in the increase in total non-interest income was the reduction in Other Than Temporary Impairment OTTI
of private label collateralized mortgage obligation securities OTTI recognized in 2009 was $148000 which is

decrease of $342000 69.79% improvement compared to the 2008 OTTI write down of $490000 The decrease in
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the determination of OTT was influenced by the adoption of ASC Topic 320-10-65-1 formerly referred to as FSP

FAS 115-2 effective January 2009 Prior to January 2009 if an investment was determined to be other than

temporarily impaired then the difference between the book value and market value was recognized as an OTTI loss

in earnings Beginning January 2009 if an investment in debt security was deemed to be other than temporarily

impaired then the difference between the book value and market value was further evaluated to identify the portion

that related to credit deterioration Only the portion related to credit deterioration is recognized through earnings

The cumulative effect of the change in accounting principle was an opening adjustment of $211000 net of tax to

increase retained earnings During 2009 the portion of OTTI that was determined to be credit-related and thus

recognized in earnings was $148000 Mortgage operations income increased to $800 thousand in 2009 from $571

thousand in 2008 reflecting the impact of government initiated first time home buyer incentives and attractive

refinancing rates available in the mortgage origination market Service charges on deposit accounts in 2009 were

$910000 decrease of $242000 or 21.01% compared to $1.2 million in 2008 reflecting the competitive market

for attracting and retaining demand deposit accounts Other non-interest income increased $272000 in 2009

reflecting receipt of one time insurance claim for $252000 Table following this discussion is comparative

analysis of the components of non-interest income for 2009 2008 and 2007

Non-Interest Expenses Non-interest expenses totaled $12.3 million for the
year

ended December 31 2009 an

increase of $2.8 million over the $9.5 million reported for 2008 Noninterest expense of $12.3 million excluding

the effect of the $349000 loss on sale of other real estate increased $1.9 million for 2009 compared to noninterest

expense of $9.5 million excluding the effect of the $536000 gain on sale of other real estate in 2008 Salaries and

employee benefits increased $239000 primarily resulting from increases in fair value
expenses

of Stock Options

issued in 2009 Professional and other services increased $184000 or 33.45% primarily due to expenses incurred to

increases in audit and legal fees and proceedings Deposit and other insurance expense increased $848000 or

196.30% because of increased FDIC premiums and the special assessment imposed during 2009 Occupancy and

equipment expense increased by $449000 due to increases in maintenance costs and additional lease
expense

incurred with the relocation of our Green Valley Office located in Greensboro and new software licensure expenses

Data processing and other outside services increased $144000 or 18.30% due primarily to costs associated with

the reconfiguration and relocation of the Banks data processing servers as well as the implementation of

significantly enhanced business and disaster recovery plan Advertising expense decreased $49000 reflecting new

marketing strategies and programs during 2009 Table following this discussion presents comparative analysis

of the components of non-interest expenses for 2009 2008 and 2007

Income Taxes The provision for income tax was $818000 in 2009 and $1.7 million in 2008 The effective tax

rates were 25.6% and 32.2% respectively on income before income taxes The decrease in the effective tax rate for

2009 reflects an increase in the proportion of tax-exempt income to total income for 2009 over 2008

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2008 AND 2007

Overview The Company reported net income available to common shareholders of $3.3 million or $0.66 per

diluted common share for the year ended December 31 2008 compared with net income available to shareholders

of $4.5 million or $0.92 per diluted common share for 2007 decrease of $1.2 million or $0.26 per diluted share

Results for the 12 months ended December 31 2008 included one-time after tax adjustment of $248000 related to

Other Than Temporary Impairment of Mortgage Backed Securities Results for the 12 months ended December 31
2007 included one-time after-tax adjustment of $579000 related to the reversal of accrued benefits for former

executive officer Excluding the effect of these adjustments our diluted earnings per common share for 2008 would

have been $0.71 compared to $0.80 for 2007

Net Interest Income Net interest income increased to $14.3 million for the
year ended December 31 2008

$990000 or 7.4% increase from the $13.3 million earned in 2007 Total interest income benefited from strong

growth in the level of average earning assets offset by lower asset yields caused by the decrease in interest rates

during the year The rates earned on significant portion of the Banks loans adjust immediately when indexes like

the prime rate change Conversely large portion of interest-bearing liabilities including certificates of deposit and

Bank borrowings have rates fixed until maturity As result interest rate reductions will generally result in an

immediate drop in the Banks interest income on loans with more delayed impact on interest expense because

reductions in interest costs will only occur upon renewals of certificates of deposit or borrowings Interest rate

increases will generally result in an immediate increase in the Banks interest income on loans with more delayed

impact on interest expense because increases in interest costs will only occur upon renewals of certificates of

deposit or borrowings Average total interest-earning assets increased $59.8 million or 14.0% during 2008
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compared to 2007 while the average yield decreased by 119 basis points from 7.27% to 6.08% As interest rates

decreased during 2008 the average rate on loans decreased year over year The average rate on investment

securities increased in 2008 compared to 2007 reflecting managements decision to purchase higher yielding

securities during 2008 taking advantage of the unusual extremes in mortgaged backed securities prices in 2008

Average total interest-bearing liabilities increased by $52.1 million or 13.7% consistent with the increase in

interest-earning assets The average cost of interest-bearing liabilities decreased by 113 basis points from 4.66% to

3.53% With the yield on earning assets decreasing more significantly than the cost of interest bearing liabilities the

Banks net interest margin decreased by 18 basis points For the year ended December 31 2008 the net interest

margin was 2.94% while for the year ended December 31 2007 the net interest margin was 3.12% Table

reflects the volume and rate variances from 2008 vs 2007

Provision for Loan Losses The Bank recorded $1.7 million in the provision for loan losses in 2008 an increase of

$1.2 million from the $425000 provision made in 2007 Provisions for loan losses are charged to income to bring

the allowance for loan losses to level deemed appropriate by management In evaluating the allowance for loan

losses management considers factors that include growth composition and industry diversification of the portfolio

historical loan loss experience current delinquency levels adverse situations that may affect borrowers ability to

repay estimated value of any underlying collateral prevailing economic conditions and other relevant factors For

2008 the provision to loan losses was made in response to the weakened economy and real estate market

experienced during 2008 large provisions were made each quarter during the year total loans outstanding net of

loans held for sale increased by $62.9 million in 2008 and by $58.1 million in 2007 At December 31 2008 the

allowance for loan losses was $5.6 million an increase of $1.2 million or 26.22% from the $4.5 million at the end

of 2007 The allowance represented 1.30% and 1.20% respectively of loans outstanding at the end of 2008 and

2007 net of loans held for sale At December 31 2008 the Bank had $3.1 million in non-accrual loans In 2007 the

Bank had $700000 in non-accrual loans It is managements opinion that reserve levels are adequate

Non-Interest Income Non-interest income decreased to $2.2 million for the year
ended December 31 2008

compared to $2.6 million for the
year

ended December 31 2007 decrease of $407000 or 15.49% An Other Than

Temporary Impairment of private label collateralized mortgage obligation securities in the amount of $490000 was

recognized in 2008 Excluding the Other Than temporary Impairment non-interest income increased $83000 or

3.2% for 2008 Mortgage operations income decreased to $571 thousand in 2008 from $600 thousand in 2007

reflecting softening in the overall mortgage origination market Service charges on deposit accounts in 2008 were

$1.2 million an increase of $94000 or 8.9% compared to $1.1 million in 2007 reflecting the positive results of

focused marketing effort to increase demand deposit accounts Table following this discussion is comparative

analysis of the components of non-interest income for 2008 2007 and 2006

Non-Interest Expense Non-interest
expense

totaled $9.5 million for the
year

ended December 31 2008 an

increase of $1.2 million over the $8.3 million reported for 2007 Adjusting non-interest expense for one-time

adjustment of $905000 related to the reversal of accrued benefits for former executive officer non-interest

expense for 2007 would have totaled $9.2 million reflecting an increase of $252000 or 2.73% for 2008

Substantially all of this increase resulted from the Banks growth and development during 2008 and 2007

Personnel costs after the one-time adjustment of $905 thousand related to the reversal of accrued benefits for

former executive officer increased by $3000 in 2008 Professional and other services increased $74000 or 15.6%

primarily due to expenses incurred related to the preparation of anticipated regulatory changes and increases in legal

fees and proceedings Deposit and other insurance expense increased $80000 or 22.7% because of increased FDIC

premiums Occupancy and equipment expense increased by $51000 due to increases in maintenance costs and

additional lease expense incurred with the relocation of our Green Valley Office located in Greensboro NC Data

processing and other outside services decreased $19000 or 1.7% due to the renegotiation of our bank platform

operating system contract Advertising expense
increased $131000 reflecting new marketing strategies and

programs during 2008 gain on sale of other real estate was recognized in the amount of $536 and $481

respectively for 2008 and 2007 Table following this discussion presents comparative analysis of the

components of non-interest expenses
for 2009 2008 and 2007

Income Taxes The provision for income tax was $1.7 million in 2008 and $2.3 million in 2007 The effective tax

rates were 32.2% and 32.4% respectively on income before income taxes..

LIQUIDITY

The Banks sources of liquidity are customer deposits cash and demand balances due from other banks interest

earning deposits in other banks and investment securities available for sale These funds together with loan and

securities repayments are used to fund loans and continuing operations At December 31 2009 the Bank had credit
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availability with the Federal Reserve Bank of $74.6 million and the FHLB of $167.2 million with $25.0 million

outstanding

Total deposits were $465.0 million and $467.9 million at December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively The Banks

deposits decreased 0.63% in 2009 Because the Banks organic deposit growth was sufficient in amount to meet the

total funding needs of the Banks asset growth the Bank reduced its exposure to alternative funding sources during

2009 The Bank reduced its total wholesale funding sources in 2009 by $24.0 million or 11.60% Total wholesale

funding was $183.0 million at December 31 2009 compared to $207.1 million at December 31 2008 The Bank

will continue to evaluate all funding sources for cost accessibility dependability and efficiency Brokered

certificates of deposits decreased $21.0 million during 2009 from $123.4 million in 2008 to $102.4 million in 2009
decrease of 17.03% Brokered deposits as percent of assets decreased from 22.82% in 2008 to 18.92% in 2009

At December 31 2009 and 2008 time deposits represented 58.11% and 63.0% respectively of the Banks total

deposits Certificates of deposit of$l00000 or more represented 48.8% and 59.9% respectively of the Banks total

deposits at December 31 2009 and 2008 At December 31 2009 the Bank had $20.8 million in public deposits and

$102.4 million in brokered time deposits These sources of funds are generally considered to be less stable than

deposits from the Banks local markets However management believes that other non-traditional funding time

deposits are relationship oriented While the Bank appreciates the need to pay competitive rates to retain these

deposits other subjective factors also influence deposit retention Based upon prior experience the Bank anticipates

that substantial portion of outstanding certificates of deposit will renew upon maturity The Banks aggregate

wholesale funding comprised of brokered CDs wholesale NOW accounts FHLB advances FRB discount window

borrowings and CDARS accounts Certificate of Deposit Account Registry Service as percentage of total assets

decreased to 33.9% in 2009 from 38.3% in 2008 The wholesale funding aggregate decrease is due primarily to an

increase in traditional deposits resulting from our customer bases recognition of MidCarolinas consistent

performance during difficult economic period

Management anticipates that the Bank will continue to utilize non-local market funding sources such as wholesale

NOW accounts CDARS FHLB advances FRB advances and brokered certificates of deposits as less costly

diversified funding source to complement the Banks local market deposits Deposits loan repayments mortgage-

backed securities prepayments bond maturities FHLB advances FRB discount window borrowings and current

earnings will be employed to provide liquidity generate loans purchase securities procure fixed assets and meet

other operating needs incurred in normal banking activities

In the normal course of business there are various outstanding contractual obligations of the Bank that will require

future cash outflows In addition there are commitments and contingent liabilities such as commitments to extend

credit that may or may not require future cash outflows Table following this discussion Contractual Obligations

and Commitments summarizes the Banks contractual obligations and commitments as of December 31 2008

CAPITAL RESOURCES

At December 31 2009 and 2008 shareholders equity of the Company totaled $40.2 million and $37.2 million

respectively The Companys equity to asset ratio on those dates was 7.42% and 6.9% respectively reflecting the

Companys moderate growth during 2009 The Company and the Bank are subject to minimum capital

requirements See PART ITEM DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS SUPERVISION AND REGULATION
Because the Companys only significant asset is its investment in the Bank information concerning capital ratios is

essentially the same for the Company and the Bank

All capital ratios place the Bank in excess of minimum requirements to be classified as well capitalized by

regulatory measures The Banks Tier-i leverage ratio was 8.67% at December 31 2009

Note to the accompanying consolidated financial statements presents an analysis of the Banks regulatory capital

position as of December 31 2009 and 2008 Management anticipates that the Bank will remain well-capitalized

for regulatory purposes throughout 2009

ASSET/LIABILITY MANAGEMENT

The Banks results of operations depend substantially on its net interest income Like most financial institutions the

Banks interest income and cost of funds are affected by general economic conditions and by competition in the

market place The purpose of assetlliability management is to provide stable net interest income growth by
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protecting the Banks earnings from undue interest rate risk which arises from volatile interest rates and changes in

the balance sheet mix and by managing the risk/return relationships between liquidity interest rate risk market risk

and capital adequacy The Bank maintains and has complied with an assetlliability management policy approved

by the Board of Directors of the Company and the Bank that provides guidelines for controlling exposure to interest

rate risk by utilizing the following ratios and trend analysis liquidity equity volatile liability dependence portfolio

maturities maturing assets and maturing liabilities The Banks policy is to control the exposure of its earnings to

changing interest rates by generally endeavoring to maintain position within range
around an earnings neutral

position which is defmed as the mix of assets and liabilities that generate net interest margin that is least affected

by interest rate changes

When suitable lending opportunities are not sufficient to utilize available funds the Bank has generally invested

such funds in securities primarily securities issued by U.S governmental agencies mortgage-backed securities and

securities issued by local governmental municipalities The securities portfolio contributes to the Banks profits and

plays an important part in the overall interest rate management However management of the securities portfolio

alone cannot balance overall interest rate risk The securities portfolio must be used in combination with other

asset/liability techniques to actively manage the balance sheet The primary objectives in the overall management of

the securities portfolio are safety liquidity yield asset/liability management interest rate risk and investing in

securities that can be pledged for public deposits or as collateral for FHLB advances

In reviewing the needs of the Bank with regard to proper management of its asset/liability program the Banks

management estimates its future needs taking into consideration historical periods of high loan demand and low

deposit balances estimated loan and deposit increases due to increased demand through marketing and forecasted

interest rate changes number of measures are used to monitor and manage interest rate risk including income

simulations and interest sensitivity gap analyses An income simulation model is the primary tool used to assess

the direction and magnitude of changes in net interest income resulting from changes in interest rates Key

assumptions in the model include prepayments on loan and loan-backed assets cash flows and maturities of other

investment securities loan and deposit volumes and pricing These assumptions are inherently uncertain and as

result the model cannot precisely estimate net interest income or precisely predict the impact of higher or lower

interest rates on net interest income Actual results will differ from simulated results due to timing magnitude and

frequency of interest rate changes and changes in market conditions and management strategies among other

factors

Based on the results of the income simulation model as of December 31 2009 due to the extremely low interest

rate environment the Bank would expect decrease in net interest income of $376000 if interest rates increase

from current rates by an instantaneous 100 basis points and an increase in net interest income of $547000 thousand

if interest rates decrease from current rates by an instantaneous 100 basis points

The analysis of an institutions interest rate gap the difference between the repricing of interest-earning assets and

interest-bearing liabilities during given period of time is another standard tool for the measurement of the

exposure to interest rate risk Management believes that because interest rate gap analysis does not address all

factors that can affect earnings performance it should be used in conjunction with other methods of evaluating

interest rate risk

Table following this discussion Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis sets forth the amounts of interest-earning

assets and interest-bearing liabilities outstanding at December 31 2009 which are projected to reprice or mature in

each of the future time periods shown Except as stated below the amounts of assets and liabilities shown which

reprice or mature within particular period were determined in accordance with the contractual terms of the assets

or liabilities Loans with adjustable rates are shown as being due at the end of the next upcoming adjustment period

Money market deposit accounts are considered rate sensitive and are placed in the shortest period Negotiable order

of withdrawal or other transaction accounts are also assumed to be rate sensitive and are placed in the shortest

period In making the gap computations none of the assumptions sometimes made regarding prepayment rates and

deposit decay rates are used for any interest-earning assets or interest-bearing liabilities In addition the table does

not reflect scheduled principal payments that will be received throughout the lives of the loans The interest rate

sensitivity of the Banks assets and liabilities illustrated in the table would vary substantially if different

assumptions were used or if actual experience differs from that indicated by such assumptions

Table illustrates that if assets and liabilities reprice in the time intervals indicated in the table the Bank is asset

sensitive within three months liability sensitive over three months to twelve months asset sensitive within twelve

months and asset sensitive thereafter As stated above certain shortcomings are inherent in the method of analysis

presented in the foregoing table For example although certain assets and liabilities may have similarmaturities or
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periods to repricing they may react in different degrees to changes in market interest rates Also the interest rates

on certain types of assets and liabilities may fluctuate in advance of changes in market interest rates while interest

rates on other types may lag behind changes in market interest rates For instance while the table is based on the

assumption that money market accounts are immediately sensitive to movements in rates the Bank expects that in

changing rate environment the amount of the adjustment in interest rates for such accounts would be less than the

adjustment in categories of assets that are considered to be immediately sensitive The same is true for all other

interest-bearing transaction accounts Additionally certain assets have features that restrict changes in the interest

rates of such assets both on short-term basis and over the lives of such assets Further in the event of change in

market interest rates prepayment and early withdrawal levels could deviate significantly from those assumed in

calculating the tables Finally the ability of many borrowers to service their adjustable-rate debt may decrease in the

event of an increase in market interest rates Due to these shortcomings the Bank places primary emphasis on its

income simulation model when managing its exposure to changes in interest rates The Bank does not normally
make interest rate predictions or take undue risk on potential changes in interest rate direction The Bank is

currently neutral in its rate sensitivity Should interest rates increase or decrease the Banks earnings margins and

spreads would be positively impacted

LENDING ACTIVITIES

General The Bank provides to its customers full
range of short- to medium-term commercial mortgage

construction and personal loans both secured and unsecured The Bank also makes real estate mortgage and

construction loans

The Banks loan policies and procedures establish the basic guidelines governing its lending operations Generally
the guidelines address the types of loans that the Bank seeks target markets underwriting and collateral

requirements terms interest rate and yield considerations and compliance with laws and regulations All loans or

credit lines are subject to approval procedures and amount limitations These limitations apply to the borrowers

total outstanding indebtedness to the Bank including the indebtedness of any guarantor The policies are reviewed

and approved at least annually by the Board of Directors of the Bank The Bank supplements its own supervision of

the loan underwriting and approval process with periodic loan audits by internal loan examiners and outside

professionals experienced in loan review work The Bank has focused its portfolio lending activities on typically

higher yielding commercial construction and consumer loans The Bank also originates 1-4 family mortgages that

are typically sold into the secondary market servicing released

Table Loan Portfolio Composition following this discussion provides an analysis of the Banks loan portfolio

composition by type of loan as of the end of each of the last five
years

Table Loan Maturities following this discussion presents at December 31 2009 the aggregate maturities

or re-pricings of commercial industrial and commercial mortgage loans and of real estate constructions loans and

ii the aggregate amounts of such loans by variable and fixed rates

Commercial and Industrial Loans At December 31 2009 the Banks commercial and industrial loan portfolio

equaled $64.2 million or 14.6% of total loans as compared with $63.2 million or 14.6% of total loans at

December 31 2008 Commercial and industrial loans include both secured and unsecured loans for working capital

expansion and other business purposes Short-term working capital loans generally are secured by accounts

receivable inventory andJor equipment The Bank also makes term commercial loans secured by equipment and real

estate Lending decisions are based on an evaluation of the financial strength management and credit history of the

borrower and the quality of the collateral securing the loan With few exceptions the Bank requires personal

guarantees and secondary sources of repayment

Commercial and industrial loans generally provide greater yields and reprice more frequently than other types of

loans such as real estate loans as most commercial loan yields are tied to the prime rate index Therefore yields on

most commercial loans adjust with changes in the prime rate

Real Estate Loans Real estate loans are originated for the purpose of purchasing constructing or refinancing one
to four family five or more family and commercial properties The Bank offers fixed and adjustable rate options
The Bank provides customers access to long-term conventional real estate loans through its mortgage loan

department which makes Federal National Mortgage Association FNMA and Federal Home Loan Mortgage

Company FHLMC and Government National Mortgage Association GNMA-- conforming loans that are

originated with commitment from correspondent bank to purchase the loan within 0-45 days of closing
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Residential 1- family loans are classified into two categories conforming loans that are originated under the

underwriting guidelines established by FNMA FHLMC or GNMA and held for sale and nonconforming loans that

are originated and retained in the Banks loan portfolio The terms conforming and nonconforming do not refer

to credit quality but rather to whether the loan is underwritten so that it can be sold in the secondary market At

December 31 2009 the Bank had $228000 loans held for sale while nonconforming loans held in the Banks

permanent portfolio amounted to $442000 The Banks permanent residential mortgage loans are generally secured

by properties located within the Banks market area Most of the one to four family residential mortgage loans that

the Bank makes are conforming loans and are sold within 30 days of closing to correspondent bank The Bank

originated 288 loans in the amount of $51.5 million for sale in the secondary market during 2009 The Bank

receives fee for each loan originated with fees aggregating $800000 for the year ended December 31 2009 and

$571000 for the year ended December 31 2008 The Bank anticipates that it will continue to be an active originator

of residential loans Nonconforming residential mortgage loans that are retained in the Banks loan portfolio

generally have rate terms of five years or less with amortizations up to 20 years

The Bank has made and anticipates continuing to make commercial real estate loans Commercial real estate loans

amounted to $174.9 million at December 31 2009 These loans are secured principally by commercial buildings for

office storage and warehouse space and by agricultural properties Generally in underwriting commercial real

estate loans the Bank requires the personal guarantee of borrowers and demonstrated cash flow capability

sufficient to service the debt Loans secured by commercial real estate usually involve greater degree of risk than

1-4 family residential mortgage loans Payments on such loans are often dependent on successful operation or

management of the properties

The Bank originates 1- family residential construction loans for the construction of custom homes where the

home buyer is the borrower and provides financing to builders and consumers for the construction of pre-sold

homes The Bank generally receives pre-arranged permanent financing commitment from an outside entity prior to

financing the construction of pre-sold homes The Bank lends to builders who have demonstrated favorable record

of performance and profitable operations and who are building in markets that management believes it understands

and in which it is comfortable with the economic conditions The Bank also makes commercial real estate

construction loans generally for owner-occupied properties The Bank further endeavors to limit its construction

lending risk through adherence to established underwriting procedures The Bank generally requires documentation

for all draw requests and utilizes loan officers to inspect the project prior to honoring draw requests
from the

builder With few exceptions the Bank requires personal guarantees and secondary sources of repayment on

construction loans

Consumer Loans and Home Equity Lines of Credits Loans to individuals include automobile loans boat and

recreational vehicle financing home equity and home improvement loans and miscellaneous secured and unsecured

personal loans Consumer loans generally can carry significantly greater risks than other loans even if secured if

the collateral consists of rapidly depreciating assets such as automobiles and equipment Repossessed collateral

securing defaulted consumer loan may not provide an adequate source of repayment of the loan Consumer loan

collections are sensitive to job loss illness and other personal factors The Bank attempts to manage the risks

inherent in consumer lending by following established credit guidelines and underwriting practices designed to

minimize risk of loss

Loan Approvals The Banks loan policies and procedures establish the basic guidelines governing its lending

operations Generally the guidelines address the type of loans that the Bank seeks target markets underwriting and

collateral requirements terms interest rate and yield considerations and compliance with laws and regulations All

loans or credit lines are subject to approval procedures and amount limitations These limitations apply to the

borrowers total outstanding indebtedness to the Bank including the indebtedness of any guarantor The policies are

reviewed and approved at least annually by the Board of Directors of the Bank The Bank supplements its own

supervision of the loan underwriting and approval process
with periodic loan audits by independent outside

professionals experienced in loan review analysis

Responsibility for loan production rests with the Senior Commercial Lending Officer in each market The

responsibility for loan underwriting loan processing and approval is with the Chief Credit Officer The Board of

Directors of the Bank reviews the Presidents lending authority annually The Board in turn delegates loan

authority to the ChiefCredit Officer and other loan officers of the Bank Delegated authorities may include loans

letters of credit overdrafts uncollected funds and such other authority as determined by the Board of Directors or

the President
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The President and the Chief Credit Officer each have the authority to approve loans up to $400 thousand The

President in conjunction with the Chief Credit Officer have the combined authority to approve loans up to $2

million which is the maximum staff in-house lending limit set by the Board of Directors The Boards Loan

Committee approves all loans in excess of the staffs in-house lending limit The Committee consists of the

President the Chairman and Vice Chairman of the Banks Board and six outside directors as appointed by the

Board of the Bank

Additionally all loans of $50 thousand or greater and all loans with relationship exposure of $200000 or above are

reviewed by the Management Loan Comrrnttee comprised of the President Chief Credit Officer and the Senior

Commercial Loan Officers for Alamance County and Guilford County The Banks Loan Committee reviews all

loans with total exposure of $1.0 million or greater and
approves

all loans with total exposure of $2.0 million or

greater The Banks legal lending limit was $13.9 million at December 31 2009 The Bank seldom makes loans

approaching its legal lending limit

COMMITMENTS TO EXTEND CREDIT

In the ordinary course of business the Bank enters into various types of transactions that include commitments to

extend credit that are not included in loans receivable net presented on the Companys consolidated balance sheets

The Bank applies the same credit standards to these commitments as it uses in all its lending activities and has

included these commitments in its lending risk evaluations The Banks
exposure to credit loss under commitments

to extend credit is represented by the amount of these commitments See Note to the accompanying consolidated

financial statements and Table

ASSET QUALITY

The Bank considers asset quality to be of primary importance and employs formal internal loan review process to

ensure adherence to the lending policy as approved by the Banks Board of Directors It is the responsibility of each

loan officer to assign an appropriate risk grade to loans when originated Credit Administration through the loan

review process validates the accuracy of the initial risk grade assessment In addition as given loans credit

quality changes it is the responsibility of Credit Administration to change the borrowers risk grade accordingly

The process of determining the allowance for loan losses is fundamentally driven by the risk grade system In

determining the allowance for loan losses and any resulting provision to be charged against earnings particular

emphasis is placed on the results of the loan review process Consideration is also given to historical loan loss

experience the value and adequacy of collateral economic conditions in the Banks market area and other factors

For loans determined to be impaired the allowance is based on discounted cash flows using the loans initial

effective interest rate or the fair value of the collateral for certain collateral dependent loans This evaluation is

inherently subjective as it requires material estimates including the amounts and timing of future cash flows

expected to be received on impaired loans that may be susceptible to significant change At December 31 2009 the

Bank had 24 loans on the Loan Watch List totaling $8.3 million comprised of Builder/construction loans totaling

$4.1 Million commercial and industrial loans for $3.7 million and residential mortgage loans for $551000 The

allowance for loan losses represents managements estimate of the appropriate level of reserve to provide for

probable losses inherent in the loan portfolio

The Banks policy regarding past due loans normally requires prompt charge-off to the allowance for loan losses

following timely collection efforts and thorough review Further efforts are then pursued through various means

available Loans carried in non-accrual status are generally collateralized and are considered in the determination

of the allowance for loan losses

NONPERFORMING ASSETS

The Companys total nonperforming assets increased $5.4 million to $10.2 million at December 31 2009 from $4.8

million at December 31 2008 reflecting the distressed economy mentioned previously Non accrual loans subset

of nonperforming assets comprised 71.9% of total nonperforniing assets or $7.3 million Other real estate owned

comprised the remaining significant component of nonperforming assets in the amount of $2.9 million or 28.0% of

total nonperforming assets Restructured loans at December 31 2009 which were not included in total

nonperforming assets consisted of two construction loans

Table 10 Nonperforming Assets following this discussion sets forth for the last five years information with

respect to the Banks nonperforming assets
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The Companys consolidated financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting including the

recognition of interest income on loans unless loan is placed on non-accrual basis Loans are accounted for on

non-accrual basis when management has serious concerns about the collectibility of principal or interest Generally

the Banks policy is to place loan on non-accrual status when the loan becomes 90 days past due Loans are also

placed on non-accrual status in cases where management is uncertain whether the borrower can satisfy the

contractual terms of the loan agreement Payments received on non-accrual loans generally are applied to principal

first and then to interest after all principal payments have been satisfied Restructured loans are those for which

concessions including the reduction of interest rates below rate otherwise available to that borrower or the

deferral of interest or principal have been granted due to the borrowers weakened financial condition The Bank

accrues interest on restructured loans at the restructured rate when management anticipates that no loss of original

principal will occur Potential problem loans are defined as loans currently performing that are not included in non-

accrual or restructured loans but are loans that management has concerns as to the borrowers ability to comply

with present repayment terms These loans could deteriorate to non-accrual past due or restructured loans status

Therefore management quantifies the risk associated with problem loans in assessing the adequacy of the allowance

for loan losses At December 31 2008 the Bank identified $7.8 million in non-accrual loans At December 31

2008 the Bank identified $3.1 million in non-accrual loans

Other real estate owned consists of foreclosed repossessed and idled properties At December 31 2009 there were

$2.9 million assets classified as real estate owned At December 31 2008 there were $1.6 million assets classified

as real estate owned

ANALYSIS OF ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

The allowance for loan losses is established through provision for loan losses charged to expense Loans are

charged-off against the allowance when management believes that the collectibility of principal is unlikely

Recoveries of amounts previously charged-off are credited to the allowance

The allowance for loan losses relating to loans that are determined to be impaired under SPAS No 114 is based on

discounted cash flows using the loans initial effective interest rate or the estimated fair value of the collateral less

costs to sell for certain collateral dependent loans Large groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans that are

collectively evaluated for impairment such as residential mortgage and consumer installment loans are excluded

from impairment evaluation and their allowance for loan losses is calculated in accordance with the allowance for

loan losses policy described below

The provision for loan losses charged to operating expense is based on factors which in managements judgment

deserve current recognition in estimating probable loan losses Such factors considered by management include

growth and composition of the loan portfolio the relationship of the allowance for loan losses to outstanding loans

and economic conditions While management uses the best information available to make evaluations this

evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires material estimates including the amounts and timing of future cash

flows expected to be received on impaired loans that may be susceptible to significant change

In addition various regulatory agencies as an integral part of their examination process periodically review the

Companys allowance for loan losses Such agencies may require the Company to recognize adjustments to the

allowance based on their judgments of information available to them at the time of their examination

Growth in loans outstanding has throughout the Banks history been the primary reason for increases in the Banks

allowance for loan losses and the resultant provisions for loan losses necessary to provide for those increases This

growth has been spread among the Banks major loan categories with the concentrations of major loan categories

being relatively consistent Between December 31 2008 and December 31 2009 the range of each major category

of loans as percentage of total loans outstanding is as follows residential mortgage loans 16.9% to 18.7%

commercial mortgage loans 36.0% to 39.9% construction loans 21.1% to 15.4% commercial and industrial

loans 14.6% to 14.6% loans to individuals 1.4% to 1.2% and home equity lines of credit 10.0% to 10.2%

For the past five fiscal years through 2009 the Banks loan loss experience has been similar to that of other peer

banks in North Carolina with net loan charge-offs in each year of ranging from 0.05% to 0.63% of
average

loans

outstanding Charge offs are typically recognized when it is the opinion of management that all or portion of an

outstanding loan becomes uncollectible Loan repayment may be realized through contractual agreement or

through liquidation of assets pledged as collateral Net charge-offs totaled $495000 or 0.12% of outstanding loans

for 2008 and $2.8 million or 0.63% of outstanding loans for 2009 The Banks allowance for loan losses at

December 31 2008 of $5.6 million represents 1.30% of total loans outstanding net of loans held for sale The

Banks allowance for loan losses at December 31 2009 was $7.3 million or 1.67% of outstanding loans net of
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loans held for sale The allowance for loan losses as percentage of loans outstanding increased in 2009 compared

to 2008 due to an increase in loans outstanding as well as increases in non performing loans reflecting the decline in

the local national and international economic environment Non performing loans increased $4.2 million during

2009 to $7.3 million compared to $3.1 million at December 31 2008 $6.9 million of the non performing loans at

December 31 2009 or 93.6% were concentrated in commercial real estate

Table 11 Allocation for the Allowance of Loan Losses following this discussion presents the allocation of the

allowance for loan losses at the end of each of the last five years The allocation is based on an evaluation of defined

loan problems historical ratios of loan losses and other factors that may affect future loan losses in the categories of

loans shown

Table 12 Loan Loss and Recovery Experience following this discussion sets forth for each of the last five years

information regarding changes in the Banks allowance for loan losses

iNVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

The Banks portfolio of investment securities all of which are available for sale consists primarily of U.S

government agency securities mortgage-backed securities private label collateralized mortgage obligations and

securities issued by local governments Securities to be held for indefmite periods of time and not intended to be

held to maturity are classified as available for sale and carried at fair value with any unrealized gains or losses

reflected as an adjustment to stockholders equity Securities held for indefmite periods of time include securities

that management intends to use as part of its assetiliability management strategy and that may be sold in
response to

changes in interest rates and/or significant prepayment risks It is the Banks policy to classify its investment

securities as available for sale Table 13 Securities Portfolio Composition following this discussion summarizes

investment securities by type at December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

Table 14 Securities Portfolio Composition following this discussion summarizes the amortized costs fair values

and weighted average yields of the Banks investment securities at December 31 2009 by contractual maturity

groups

The Bank does not engage in nor does it presently intend to engage in securities trading activities and therefore

does not maintain trading account At December 31 2009 there were no securities of any issuer other than

governmental agencies held in the Banks portfolio that exceeded 10% of the Companys shareholders equity

SOURCES OF FUNDS

Deposit Activities The Bank provides range of deposit services including non-interest-bearing checking

accounts interest-bearing checking and savings accounts money market accounts and certificates of deposit These

accounts generally earn interest at rates established by management based on competitive market factors and

managements desire to increase or decrease certain types or maturities of deposits As described in -Liquidity

above the Bank uses wholesale deposits as funding source However the Bank strives to establish customer

relations to attract core deposits in non-interest-bearing transactional accounts and thus to reduce the Banks costs

of funds

Table 15 Average Deposits following this discussion sets forth for the for the
years

ended December 31 2009
2008 and 2007 the average balances outstanding and average interest rates for each major category of deposits

Table 16 Maturities of Time Deposits of $100000 or More which follows this discussion presents maturities of

certificates of deposit with balances of $100000 or more at December 31 2009

Borrowings As additional sources of funding the Bank uses advances from the FHLB under line of credit equal

to 30% of the Banks total assets subject to qualifying collateral The available aggregate line of credit was $167.2

million at December 31 2009 Outstanding advances at December 31 2009 totaled $25.0 million $10.0 million

maturing in 2010 bearing interest at weighted average rate of 4.70% $5 million maturing in 2011 at 2.37% and

$10 million maturing in 2018 at 2.98%.The Bank had no daily rate credit advances outstanding at December 31
2009 Pursuant to collateral agreements with the FHLB at December 31 2009 advances are secured by loans with

carrying amount of $110.8 million which approximates market value Advances outstanding at December 31
2008 totaled $25.0 million
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The Bank also has line of credit with the FRB through their discount window in the amount of $74.6 million No

borrowings were outstanding at December 31 2009 The line of credit is secured by loans with carrying amount

of $95.4 million which approximates market value

In addition to FHLB advances the Company issued $8.8 million ofjunior subordinated debentures to its wholly

owned capital trusts MidCarolina and MidCarolina Trust II to fully and unconditionally guarantee the preferred

securities issued by the Trusts These long term obligations which currently qualify as Tier capital for the

Company constitute full and unconditional guarantee by the Company of the Trusts obligations under the Capital

Trust Securities

C1UTICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

We have established various accounting policies that govern the application of accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America in the preparation of our financial statements Significant accounting

policies are described in Note to the audited consolidated financial statements These policies may involve

significant judgments and estimates that have material impact on the carrying value of certain assets and liabilities

Different assumptions made in the application of these policies could result in material changes in our financial

position and results of operations

Allowance for Loan Losses The Companys most significant critical accounting policy is the determination of the

Banks allowance for loan losses critical accounting policy is one that is both very important to the portrayal of

the Companys financial condition and results and requires managements most difficult subjective or complex

judgments What makes these judgments difficult subjective and/or complex is the need to make estimates about

the effects of matters that are inherently uncertain If the mix and amount of future write-offs differ significantly

from those assumptions used in making determination the allowance for loan losses and provision for loan losses

on the income statement could be materially affected For further discussion of the allowance for loan losses and

detailed description of the methodology used in determining the adequacy of the allowance see the sections of this

discussion titled Asset Quality Analysis of Allowance for Loan Losses and Note to the consolidated

financial statements contained in this Annual Report

Other Than Temporary Impairment We evaluate securities for other-than-temporary impairment at least on

monthly basis and more frequently when economic or market concerns warrant such evaluation Consideration is

given to the length of time and the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost the financial

condition and near-term prospects of the issuer the anticipated outlook for changes in the general level of

interest rates whether for debt securities it is more likely than not that we will be required to sell the security

before recovery
of its amortized cost basis and whether for equity securities our intent and ability to retain our

investment in the issuer for period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements The Company does not have any off-balance sheet arrangements that have or

are reasonably likely to have current or future effect of the Companys financial condition changes in fmancial

condition revenues or expenses results of operations liquidity capital expenditures or capital resources that is

material to investors

RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH THE BANK AND THE COMPANY

Concentration of Operations The Banks operations are concentrated in the Piedmont region of North Carolina

As result of this geographic concentration the Banks results may correlate to the economic conditions in this

area deterioration in economic conditions in this market area particularly in the industries on which these

geographic areas depend may adversely affect the quality of the Banks loan portfolio and the demand for the

Banks products and services and accordingly its results of operations

Risks Associated with Loans significant source of risk for the Bank arises from the possibility that losses will

be sustained because borrowers guarantors and related parties may fail to perform in accordance with the terms of

their loans The Bank has underwriting and credit monitoring procedures and credit policies including the

establishment and review of the allowance for loan losses that management believes are appropriate to minimize

this risk by assessing the likelihood of nonperformance tracking loan performance and diversifying the Banks loan

portfolio Such policies and procedures however may not prevent unexpected losses that could adversely affect

results of operations dramatic fluctuation in real estate prices may affect loan collateral values as well as credit

extension decisions related to homebuilding and construction segments of the Banks real estate loan portfolio
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Competition with Larger Financial Institutions The banking and financial services business in the Banks

market area continues to be competitive field and is becoming more competitive as result of

changes in regulations

changes in technology and product delivery systems and

the accelerating pace of consolidation among financial services providers

It may be difficult to compete effectively in the Banks market and results of operations could be adversely affected

by the nature or pace of change in competition The Bank competes for loans deposits and customers with various

bank and non-bank fmancial services providers many of which are much larger in total assets and capitalization

have greater access to capital markets and offer broader array of fmancial services

Trading Volume The Companys trading volume is relatively low when compared with more seasoned companies

listed on the Nasdaq Capital Market the Nasdaq Global Global Select Market System the New York Stock

Exchange or other consolidated reporting systems or stock exchanges The market in the Companys common stock

may be limited in
scope

relative to other companies The Company cannot guarantee that more active and liquid

trading market for the Companys common stock will develop in the future

Technological Advances The banking industry is undergoing technological changes with frequent introductions of

new technology-driven products and services In addition to improving customer services the effective use of

technology increases efficiency and enables financial institutions to reduce costs The Banks future success will

depend in part on its ability to address the needs of its customers by using technology to provide products and

services that will satisfy customer demands for convenience as well as to create additional efficiencies in the Banks

operations Many of our competitors have substantially greater resources than the Company and the Bank to invest

in technological improvements

Government Regulations Current and future legislation and the policies established by federal and state regulatory

authorities will affect the Companys and the Banks operations The Bank is subject to supervision and periodic

examination by the FDTC and the Commissioner The Company is subject to the supervision and regulation of the

Federal Reserve and the Commissioner Banking regulations designed primarily for the protection of depositors

may limit the Companys and the Banks growth and the return to our shareholders by restricting certain of the

Companys and the Banks activities such as

the payment of dividends to the Companys shareholders

possible mergers with or acquisitions of or by other institutions

investment policies

loans and interest rates on loans

interest rates paid on deposits

expansion of branch offices and/or

the possibility to provide or expand securities or trust services

The Company cannot predict what changes if any will be made to existing federal and state legislation and

regulations or the effect that any changes may have on future business and earnings prospects The cost of

compliance with regulatory requirements may adversely affect the Companys and the Banks ability to operate

profitably
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MidCarolina Financial Corporation

Table

Average Balances and Net Interest Income

in thousands

Year Ended December31 2009 Year Ended December 31 2008

Average Average Average Average Average Average

Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate

441704 24160 5.47% 405119 25763 6.36% 344620 27037 7.85%

70289 3378 4.81% 69728 3561 5.11% 72013 3581 4.97%

9387 21 0.22% 9678 131 1.35% 8080 264 3.27%

2312 24 1.04% 2454 161 6.56% 2429 171 7.04%

Total
interest-earning assets

Other assets

Total assets

523692 27583 2Z

26915

550607

486979 29616 6.08%

19602

506581

427142 31053 7.27%

20300

447442

Interest-bearing liabilities

Deposits

Demand deposits

Savings deposits

Fixed maturity deposits

Short tenn borrowed funds

Long term borrowed funds

112438 1510 1.34%

6663 20 0.30%

312282 7648 2.45%

2225 15 0.67%

33764 1247 3.69%

74531 1275 1.71% 80529 2796 3.47%

5772 29 0.50% 6024 60 1.00%

308562 12192 3.95% 249096 12501 5.02%

9807 288 2.94% 16636 1094 6.58%

33764 1510 4.47% 28003 1270 4.54%

Total interest-bearing liabilities 467372 10440 432436 15294 3.54% 380288 17721 4.66%

Total liabilities and stockholders
equity 550607 506581 447442

Net interest income and interest rate spread 17143 1Q 14322 2.54% 13332 2.61%

Net yield on average interest-earning assets

Ratio of average interest-earning assets

to average interest-bearing liabilities 112.05%
________

includes nonaccrual and nonperforming loans the impact of which is not significant Tax exempt income is not computed on tax equivalent basis

Interest-earning assets

Loans net

Investment securities

Interest-earning cash deposits

Other

Year Ended December31 2007

Noninterest-bearing deposits 43629 36925 34479

Other liabilities 992 1390 2774
Stockholders equity 38614 35830 29901

2.94%

112.61%

3.12%

112.32%
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MldCarolina Financial Corporation

Table

Volume and Rate Variance Analysis

In Thousands

Year Ended December31 2009 vs 2008 Year Ended December31 2008 vs 2007

Increase Decrease Due to Increase Decrease Due to

Volume Rate Total Volume Rate Total

Interest income

Loans net 2164 3767 1603 4297 5571 1274
Investment securities 28 211 183 115 95 20
Interest-earning cash deposits 108 110 37 170 133
Other 132 137 12 10

Total interest income 2185 4218 2033 4221 5658 1437

Interest expense

Deposits

Demand deposits 579 344 235 155 1366 1521

Savings deposits 13 29 31
Fixedmaturitydeposits 119 4663 4544 2667 2976 309
Short termborrowed funds 137 136 273 325 481 806

Long term borrowed funds 263 263 259 19 240

Total interest expense 565 5419 4854 2444 4871 2427

Net interest income increase decrease 1620 1201 2821 1777 787 990
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MidCarolina Financial Corporation

Table

Noninterest Income

In thousands

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

Service charges on deposit accounts 910 1152 1058

Mortgage operations 800 571 600

Investment brokerage fees 245 300 288

Increase in cash surrender value of life insurance 286 299 290

Core noninterest income 2241 2322 2236

Securities gains losses net 63 29

Impairment on investment securities 148 490
Other noninterest income 631 359 383

Total noninterest income 2787 2220 2627
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MidCarolina Financial Corporation

Table

Noninterest Expenses

In thousands

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

Salaries 4564 4338 4085

Employee benefits 1062 1049 1299

Reversal of accrued employee benefits 905

Total salaries and benefits 5626 5387 4479

Occupancy expense 979 699 428

Equipment expense 603 434 425

Other outside services 374 307 357

Data processing 931 787 774

Office supplies and postage 341 350 317

Deposit and other insurance 1280 432 352

Professional and other services 734 550 476

Advertising 338 387 256

Gain loss on sale of other real estate 349 536 481
Other 726 665 922

Total noninterest expenses 12281 9462 8305
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MidCarolina Financial Corporation

Table

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

in thousands

Payments Due by Period

On Demand After year After years

or Within through through After

Contractual Obligations Total Year Years Years Years

Short-term borrowings 520 520

Long-term debt 33764 10000 5000 10000 8764

Operating leases 3050 388 688 658 1316

Total contractual cash obligations

excluding deposits 37334 10908 5688 10658 10080

Time deposits 340751 326322 14429

Total contractual cash obligations 378085 337230 20117 10658 10080

Amount of Commitment Expiration Per Period

Total On Demand After year After years

Amounts or Within through through After

Commercial Commitments Committed Year Years Years Years

Lines of credit and loan commitments 67649 30394 3614 33641

includes financial standby letters of credit net
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MidCarolina Financial Corporation

Table

Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis

in thousands

At December 31 2009

Months Over Months Total Within Over 12

or Less to 12 Months 12 Months Months Total

Interest-earning assets

Loans and loans held for sale

Securities available for sale

Other earning assets

Total interest-earning assets

254171 65466 319637 118678

1407 7892 9299 61420

10170 10170

265748 73358 339106 180098

438315

70719

10170

519204

Interest-bearing liabilities

Fixed maturity deposits

All other deposits

Borrowings

10560

153094

28020

191674

112440 123000 147260

153094

28020 6264

112440 304114 153524

270260

153094

34284

457638

Interest sensitivity gap

Cumulative interest sensitivity gap

Cumulative interest sensitivity gap as

percent of total interest-earning assets

Cumulative ratio of interest-sensitive assets

to interest-sensitive liabilities

39082 34992 26574 61566

34992 34992 61566 61566

74074

74074

14.27% 6.74% 6.74% 11.86% 11.86%

138.65% 111.51% 111.51% 113.45% 113.45%
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MidCarolina Financial Corporation

Table

Loan Portfolio Composition

in thousands
At December 31

2006

%of %of %of %of %of

Total Total Total Total Total

Amount Loans Amount Loans Amount Loans Amount Loans Amount Loans

Real Estate

Construction loans 67635 15.43% 91933 21.15% 80051 21.49% 71348 22.61% 67170 23.92%

Commercial mortgage loans 174926 39.92% 156333 35.97% 140198 37.63% 124385 39.41% 100292 35.71%

HomeequitylinesOfCredit 44627 10.18% 43290 9.96% 41479 11.13% 33090 10.49% 30072 10.71%

Residentialmortgageloafls
81377 18.56% 73595 16.93% 57342 15.39% 37163 11.78% 38656 13.76%

Residential mortgage loans held for sale 228 0Qs QQLZs 823 QZ4 2016 0.63% 893 0.32%

Total real estate loans 368793 84.14% 365151 84.01% 319893 85.86% 268002 84.92% 237083 84.42%

CommercialandindustriallOafls 64173 14.64% 63239 14.55% 46893 12.59% 38965 12.35% 38929 13.86%

Loans to individuals for household family

andotherpersonalexpenditures 5383 j2% 6306 k44o 5796 j5/s 8625 L2 4836 1a2/s

Loans gross 438349 100.00% 434696 100.00% 372582 100.00% 315592 100.00% 280848 100.00%

Less unamortized net deferred loan

origination fees costs 34 34 45

Total loans 438315 434662 372537 315588 280855
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MidCarolina Financial Corporation

Table

Loan Maturities

In thousands

At December 31 2009

Due within Due after one Due after

one year year but within five five years Total

Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield

By loan type

Construction 60118 4.76% 6870 5.71% 647 4.56% 67635 4.86%

Commercial mortgage 54960 4.62% 107790 6.33% 12176 6.62% 174926 5.81%

Commercial and industrial 40.983 4.45% 20.563 5.88% 2.627 5.75% 64173 4.96%

Total 156061 4.63% 135223 6.23% 15450 4.56% 306734 5.42%

By interest rate type

Fixed rate loans 99.195 134421 15450 249066

Variable rate loans 56866 802 57668

156061 135223 15450 306734

The above table is based on contractual scheduled maturities Early repayment of loans or renewals at maturity are not

considered in this table
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MidCarolina Financial Corporation

Table 10

Nonperforming Assets

in thousands

At December 31

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Nonperforming loans

Contruction 4301 188 700 794 237

Commercial mortgage 2557 2547

Residential mortgage 486 362

Commercial and industrial 26

Loans to individuals

Total nonperforming loans 7344 3123 700 794 237

Repossessed Assets 14 47 19

Other real estate owned 2862 1608 264 2337 2803

Total nonperforming assets 10220 4778 964 3131 3059

Accruing loans past due 90 days or more

Allowance for loan losses 7307 5632 4462 4222 4090

Nonperforming loans to year end loans 1.68% 0.72% 0.19% 0.25% 0.80%

Allowance for loan losses to year end loans 1.67% 1.30% 1.20% 1.35% 1.46%

Nonperforming assets to loans

and other real estate owned 2.32% 1.11% 0.27% 0.99% 1.08%

Nonperforming assets to total assets 1.89% 0.88% 0.21% 0.74% 0.83%

Allowance for loan losses

to nonperforming loans 99.50% 180.34% 637.43% 53 1.74% 1725.74%

Restructured loans in accrual status not included above 2619

37



MidCaroftna Financial Corporation

Table 11

Allocation of the Allowance for Loan Losses

In thousands

2007 2006 2005

%ofTotal %oflotal %ofTotal %ofTotal %ofTotal

Amount Loans Amount Loans Amount Loans Amount Loans Amount Loans

Real estate loans

Constructionloans 1127 15.43% 1191 21.15% 959 21.49% 954 22.61% 978 23.92%

Commercial mortgage loans 2918 39.93% 2026 35.97% 1679 37.63% 1664 39.41% 1461 35.71%

Homeequitylinesofcredit 744 10.18% 561 9.96% 497 11.13% 443 10.49% 438 10.71%

Residentialmortgageloans 1358 1856% 954 16.93% 670 15.02% 487 11.78% 563 13.76%

Residential mortgage loans held for sale QQQ QQQs 0.00% 0.00%

Total real estate loans 6147 84.14% 4732 84.01% 3805 85.86% 3548 84.92% 3440 84.42%

Commercialandindustrialloans 1071 14.64% 819 14.55% 575 12.59% 619 12.35% 665 13.86%

Loanstoindividuals 89 1.22% 81 j44o 69 J% 115 2.73% 70 1.72%

7307 100.00% 5632 100.00% 4462 100.00% 4222 100.00% 4090 100.00%

Represents total of all outstanding loans in each category as percent of total loans outstanding
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MidCarolina Financial Corporation

Table 12

Loan Loss and Recovery Experience

in thousands

At or for the Year Ended December 31

Loans held to maturity outstanding at the end of the year

Average loans outstanding during the year

438087 434662 371714 313572 279962

441704 405119 344620 301405 252914

5632

4455

10087

1502
1396

127

3025

4462

1665

6127

411
106
16

533

4222

425

4647

268

28
296

4090

394

4484

214
87
17

318

2865

1373

4238

137
44

181

Recoveries of loans previously charged off

Real estate loans

Commercial and industrial loans

Loans to individuals

Total recoveries

Net charge-offs

Allowance for loan losses at end of year

38 46 26

_____ _____ _____
____________ ____________ ____________

56 33

2780 495 185 262 148

7307 5632 4462 4222 4090

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Allowance for loan losses at beginning of year

Provision for loan losses

Loans charged off

Real estate loans

Commercial and industrial loans

Loans to individuals

Total charge-offs

32 11

208 26

245 38 111

66

Ratios

Net charge-offs as percent of average loans

Allowance for loan losses as percent of

loans at end of year

0.63% 0.12% 0.05% 0.09% 0.06%

1.67% 1.30% 1.20% 1.35% 1.46%
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MidCarolina Financial Corporation

Table 13

Securities Portfolio Composition

In thousands

Securities available for sale

Government agencies

Mortgage-backed securities

State and municipal governments

Private label CMOs
Subordinated debentures

Total securities available for sale

At December 31

2009 2008 2007

12057 2533 19372

24917 50431 31986

28449 17607 19275

4976

320 553 168

70719 71124 70801
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MidCarolina Financial Corporation

Table 14

Securities Portfolio Composition
in thousands

At December 31 2009

Amortized Fair Book

Cost Value Yield

Securities available for sale

Government agencies

Due within one year 1013 1012 1.26%

Due after one but within five years 11100 11045 2.70%

12113 12057 2.58%

State and municipal securities

Due within one year

Due after one but within five
years 5083 4949 5.45%

Due after five but within ten years 10892 10675 5.7 1%
Due after ten years 13404 12825 5.92%

29379 28449 5.76%

Other

Due after ten years 500 320 3.75%

500 320 3.75%

Total securities available for sale

Due within one year 1013 1012 1.26%

Due after one but within five years 16183 15994 3.55%

Due after five but within ten years 10892 10675 5.71%

Dueaftertenyears 13904 13145 5.87%

Private label collateralized mortgage obligations 5683 4975 5.71%

Mortgage-backed securities 23690 24918 5.14%

71365 70719 4.99%

Yields on tax exempt securities are stated on federal tax equivalent basis
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MidCarolina Financial Corporation

Table 15

Average Deposits

in thousands

For the Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

Average Average Average Average Average Average

Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate

Demand deposits 112438 1.34% 74531 1.71% 80529 3.47%

Savings deposits 6663 0.30% 5772 0.50% 6024 1.00%

Fixedmaturitydeposits 312282 2.45% 308562 3.95% 249096 5.02%

Total interest-bearing deposits 431383 2.13% 388865 3.47% 335649 4.58%

Noninterest-bearing deposits 43629 36925 34479

Total deposits 475012 1.93% 425790 3.17% 370128 4.15%
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MidCarolina Financial Corporation

Table 16

Maturities of Time Deposits of $100000 or More

In thousands

At December 31 2009

Months Over Months Over Months Over 12

or Less to Months to 12 Months Months Total

TimeDepositsof$100000ormore 39540 40674 39213 107706 227133
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Item 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risk reflects the risk of economic loss resulting from adverse changes in market price and interest rates This

risk of loss can be reflected in diminished current market values and/or reduced potential net interest income in

future periods Our market risk arises primarily from interest rate risk inherent in our lending and deposit-taking

activities The structure of our loan and deposit portfolios is such that significant change in interest rates may

adversely impact net market values and net interest income We do not maintain trading account nor are we

subject to currency exchange risk or commodity price risk Interest rate risk is monitored as part of the Banks

Asset/Liability Management function

See the section entitled Asset/Liability Management for more detailed discussion of market risk
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Item FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Vt
DIXON HUGH ESPLLC

certified Public Accountants and Mvisors

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PuBLIc ACCOUNTING FrnM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders

MidCarolina Financial Corporation and Subsidiary

Burlington North Carolina

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition of MidCarolina Financial

Corporation and Subsidiary hereinafter referred to as the Company as of December 31 2009 and 2008

and the related consolidated statements of operations comprehensive income changes in shareholders equity

and cash flows for each of the
years

in the three-year period ended December 31 2009 These consolidated

fmancial statements are the responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility is to express an

opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement We were not engaged to

perform an audit of the Companys internal control over financial reporting Our audit included consideration

of internal control over financial reporting as basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the

circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Companys internal

control over financial reporting Accordingly we express no such opinion An audit also includes examining

on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements assessing the

accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall

financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects

the financial position of MidCarolina Financial Corporation and Subsidiary as of December 31 2009 and

2008 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period

ended December 31 2009 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of

America

As discussed in Note to the consolidated financial statements effective January 2009 the Company

changed its method of accounting for other-than-temporary impairment of debt securities as result of

adopting new accounting guidance

Raleigh North Carolina

February 25 2010
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C0Ns0LmATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

December 31 2009 and 2008

2009 2008

Amounts in thousands

except share data

Assets

Cash and due from banks 1581 1694

Federal funds sold and interest-earning deposits 7848 14040

Investment securities

Available for sale 70719 71124

Loans held for sale 228

Loans 438087 434662

Allowance for loan losses 7307 5632

Net loans 430780 429030

Investment in stock of Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta 2322 1969

Investment in life insurance 8179 7893

Premises and equipment net 7063 7455

Other assets 12284 7642

Total assets 541004 540.847

Liabifities and Shareholders Equity

Deposits

Noninterest-bearing demand deposits 41655 43104

Interest-bearing demand deposits 144839 78309

Savings 8266 5784

Time 270260 340751

Total deposits 465020 467948

Short-termborrowings 520

Long-term debt 33764 33764

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1515 1939

Total liabilities 500819 503651

Shareholders equity

Noncumulative perpetual preferred stock no par value

20000000 shares authorized 5000 shares issued and

outstanding at December 31 2009 and 2008 4819 4819

Common stock no par value 80000000 shares authorized

4927828 shares issued and outstanding at

December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively 14958 14626

Retained earnings 20805 18635

Accumulated other comprehensive loss 397 884
Total shareholders equity 40185 37196

Total liabilities and shareholders equity 541004 540 847

See accompanying notes to consolidatedfinancial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

2009 2008 2007

Amounts in thousands except per share data

Interest Income

Loans 24160 25763 27037

Investment securities

Taxable 2248 2725 2556
Tax-exempt 1130 836 1025

Federal funds sold and interest-earning deposits 21 131 264

Other 24 161 171

Total interest income 27.583 29616 31053

Interest Expense

Demand deposits 1510 1275 2796
Savings deposits 20 29 60

Time deposits 7648 12192 12501
Short-term borrowings 15 288 1094

Long-term debt 1.247 1510 1270

Total interest expense 10440 15294 17.721

Net Interest Income 17143 14322 13332
Provision for loan losses 4455 1665 425

Net interest income after provision for loan losses 12.688 12657 12.907

Noninterest Income

Service charges on deposit accounts 910 1152 1058

Mortgage operations 800 571 600

Investment services 245 300 288

Increase in cash surrender value of life insurance 286 299 290

Gain on sale of available for sale investments 189 29

Impairment on nonniarketable investments 126
Total

other-than-temporary impairment loss 456 490
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensive income 308

Net impairment loss recognized in earnings 148 490
Other 631 359 383

Total noninterest income 2787 2.220 2627

Noninterest Expense

Salaries and employee benefits 5626 5387 5384
Reversal of accrued employee benefits 905
Occupancyandequipment 1582 1133 853

Other outside services 374 307 357

Data processing 931 787 774

Office supplies and postage 341 350 317

Deposit and other insurance 1280 432 352

Professional and other services 734 550 476

Advertising 338 387 256

Gain loss on sale of other real estate owned 349 536 481
Other 726 972 922

Total noninterest expense 12.281 9.462 8305
Income before income taxes 3194 5415 7229

Provision for income taxes 818 1.74 2.342

Net income 2376 3674 4887
Dividends on preferred stock 417 417 417
Net income available to common shareholders 1.959 3.257 4470

Net Income Per Common Share

Basic .40 .66 .98

Diluted .40 .66 .92

See accompanying notes to consolidatedfinancial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

2009 2008 2007

Amounts in thousands

Net income 2376 3674 4887

Other comprehensive income loss

Securities available for sale

Change in unrealized holding gains losses

on available for sale securities net of actual gains 1485 1350 232

Tax effect 573 521 89
Reclassification of impairment on private label

collateralized mortgage obligations 148 490

Tax effect 57 189
Reclassification of gains recognized in

net income 189 29
Tax effect 73 10

Portion of other-than-temporary impairment loss

recognized in other comprehensive income 308
Tax effect 119

Total other comprehensive income loss 698 547 138

Comprehensive income 3.074 1127 5.025

See accompanying notes to consolidatedfinancial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS EQuITY

Years Ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

Accumulated

other corn- Total

Preferred stock Common stock Retained prehensive shareholders

Shares Amount Shares Amount earnings loss equity

Amounts in thousands except share data

Balance at December 31 2006 5000 4819 3619786 13007 10908 475 28259

Net income 4887 4887

Other comprehensive income 138 138

Effect of 5-for-4 stock split 904481 10 10
Preferred dividends paid 417 417

Stock options exercised 94137 279 279

Expense recognized in

connection with stock

awards and stock options 124 14 14

Balance at December 31 2007 5000 4819 4618528 13290 15378 337 33150

Net income 3674 3674

Other comprehensive loss 547 547
Preferred dividends paid 417 417

Stock options exercised 309300 792 792

Current income tax benefit 498 498

Expense recognized in

connection with stock

awards and stock options 46 46

Balance at December 312008 5000 4819 4927828 14626 18635 884 37196

Cumulative effect of accounting

method change 211 211

Net income 2376 2376

Other comprehensive income 698 698

Preferred dividends paid 417 417

Expense recognized in

connection with stock

awards and stock options 332 332

BalanceatDecember3l2009 5.000 4819 4.927.828 14.958 20.805 397 40.185

See accompanying notes to consolidatedfinancial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

2009 2008 2007

Amounts in thousands

Operating Activities

Net income 2376 3674 4887

Depreciation and amortization 567 481 458

Provision for loan losses 4455 1665 425

Stock option expense 332 46 14

Deferred income tax liability benefit 1114 573 138

Impairment of nonmarketable investments 126

Gain on sale of investment securities available for sale 189 29
Impairment of investment securities available for sale 148 490

Gain loss on sale of other real estate owned 349 536 481

Gain on sale of loans 800 571 598

Origination of loans held for sale 42750 21489 27280

Proceeds from sales of loans held for sale 43322 22883 29071

Increase in cash surrender value life insurance 286 299 290

Changes in assets and liabilities

Prepayment of FDIC insurance assessment 3134

Increase decrease in other assets 604 572 1877

Increase decrease in accrued expenses and other liabilities 731 93 729

Net cash provided by operating activities 3275 6221 5188

Investing Activities

Purchases of investment securities available for sale 44174 51091 33316

Maturities and calls of investment securities available for sale 8855 25 1447

Principal paydowns on investment securities available for sale 750 4793 3398

Sales of investment securities available for sale 36162 44570 31677

Net increase in loans from originations and principal

repayments 10187 65347 58591

Purchase redemption of FHLB stock 353 997 290

Purchases of premises and equipment 185 1065 632

Improvement costs on other real estate owned 134 16
Proceeds from sale of other real estate owned 2.511 1112 2.8 18

Net cash provided used by investing activities 6.755 66.022 53.489

Financing Activities

Net increase decrease in deposits 2928 94051 34622

Net increase decrease in short-term borrowings 520 19000 6000

Proceeds from repayment of long-term debt 5000 12000

Non-cumulative perpetual preferred stock dividends paid 417 417 417

Purchase of fractional shares 10
Proceeds from stock options exercised 792 279

Tax benefit from exercise of stock options
498

Net cash provided used by financing activities 2.825 70.924 40.474

Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents 6305 11123 7827

Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year 15.734 4.611 12.438

Cash and cash equivalents end of year
9.429 15.734 4.611

Supplemental Cash Flow Disclosure

Interest paid on deposits and borrowed funds 10697 15305 17614

Income taxes paid 1621 2349 1573

Summary of Noncash Investing and Financing Activities

Unrealized gain loss on investment securities available

for sale net of tax effect 698 547 138

Transfer of loans to other real estate owned 3982 1904 264

See accompanying notes to consolidatedfinancial statements
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NOTES To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

Note Organization and Operations

In April 2002 the shareholders of MidCarolma Bank the Bank approved an Agreement and Plan of

Reorganization pursuant to which the Bank became wholly owned banking subsidiary of MidCarolina Financial

Corporation the Company North Carolina corporation formed as holding company for the Bank At the

closing of the holding company reorganization one share of the Companys no par value common stock was

exchanged for each of the outstanding shares of the Banks common stock

The Bank was incorporated and began operations on August 14 1997 The Bank is engaged in general commercial

banking primarily in Alamance and Guilford Counties North Carolina and operates under the banking laws of

North Carolina and the Rules and Regulations of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation The Bank undergoes

periodic examinations by those regulatory authorities

Note Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts and transactions of the Company the Bank and the

Banks wholly owned subsidiary MidCarolina Investments Inc The Company wholly owns the capital trusts used

to issue trust preferred securities The trusts are not consolidated as part of these fmancial statements All

intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation

Use of Estimates

Preparing consolidated fmancial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts

of assets and liabilities the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the fmancial statements and

the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period Actual results could differ from those

estimates Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change relate to the determination of the

allowance for loan losses

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the
purpose of presentation in the consolidated statements of cash flows cash and cash equivalents include cash

and due from banks federal funds sold and interest-earning deposits Federal regulations require institutions to set

aside specified amounts of cash as reserves against transactions and time deposits As of December 31 2009 the

daily average gross reserve requirement was $3.3 million Due from bank balances are maintained in other fmancial

institutions Federal funds sold are generally purchased and sold for one-day periods but may from time to time

have longer terms

Investment Securities

Investment securities that the Company has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held to

maturity and reported at amortized cost Investment securities held for current resale are classified as trading

securities and reported at fair value with unrealized gains and losses included in earnings The Company currently

has no such securities Investment securities not classified either as securities held to maturity or trading securities

are classified as available for sale and reported at fair value with net unrealized gains and losses net of related taxes

excluded from earnings and reported as accumulated other comprehensive income in shareholders equity The

classification of investment securities as held to maturity trading or available for sale is determined at the date of

purchase Realized gains and losses from sales of investment securities are determined based upon the specific

identification method on trade-date basis Premiums and discounts are recognized in interest income using the

interest method over the terms of the securities

Loans and Interest Income

Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or pay-off

generally are reported at their unpaid principal balances less unearned income and net of any deferred loan fees and

51
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December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

costs Interest income is recorded as earned on an accrual basis The Company discontinues the recognition of

interest income when in the opinion of management collection of such interest is doubtful It is the general policy

of the Company to discontinue the accrual of interest on loans including loans impaired when principal or interest

payments are contractually delinquent 90 days or more Any unpaid amounts previously accrued on these loans are

reversed from income and thereafter interest is recognized only to the extent payments are received

loan is considered impaired when in managements judgment based on current information and events it is

probable that the Company will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due

according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement Factors considered by management in determining

impairment include payment status collateral value and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and

interest payments when due Management determines when loans become impaired through its normal loan

administration and review functions Loans identified as troubled debt restructurings TDRs are considered

impaired Loans identified as substandard or doubtful as result of the loan review process are potentially impaired

loans Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as

impaired provided that management expects to collect all amounts due including interest accrued at the contractual

interest rate for the period of delay Impairment is measured on loan by loan basis for commercial and

construction loans by either the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loans effective

interest rate the loans obtainable market price or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent

Interest revenue on impaired loans is discontinued when the loans meet the criteria for nonaccrual status described

above

Loans Held for Sale

The Company originates single family residential first mortgage loans on presold basis Loans held for sale are

carried at the lower of cost or fair value in the aggregate as detennined by outstanding commitments from investors

At closing these loans together with their servicing rights are sold to other financial institutions under prearranged

terms The Company recognizes certain origination and servicing release fees upon the sale which are classified as

mortgage operations on the consolidated statements of operations

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is established through provision for loan losses charged to expense Loans are

charged-off against the allowance when management believes that the collectibility of principal is unlikely

Recoveries of amounts previously charged-off are credited to the allowance

The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on regular basis by management and is based upon managements

periodic review of the collectibility of the loans in light of historical experience the nature and volume of the loan

portfolio adverse situations that may affect the borrowers ability to repay estimated value of any underlying

collateral and prevailing economic conditions This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires estimates that

are susceptible to significant revision as more information becomes available

The allowance consists of general and specific reserves The general reserves are determined by applying loss

percentages to the portfolio that are based on recent historical loss experience and managements evaluation and

risk grading of the loan portfolio Additionally the general economic and business conditions affecting key

lending areas credit quality trends collateral values loan volumes and concentrations seasoning of the loan

portfolio the findings of internal and external credit reviews and results from external bank regulatory examinations

are included in this evaluation The specific reserves are determined on loan-by-loan basis based on

managements evaluation of the Companys exposure for each credit given the current payment status of the loan

and the value of any underlying collateral These are loans classified by management as doubtful substandard or

special mention For such loans that are also classified as impaired an allowance is established when the discounted

cash flows or collateral value or observable market price of the impaired loan is lower than the carrying value of

that loan
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December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

In addition various regulatory agencies as an integral part of their examination process periodically review the

Companys allowance for loan losses Such agencies may require the Company to recognize adjustments to the

allowance based on their judgments of information available to them at the time of their examination

Premises and Equipment

Land is carried at cost Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation Depreciation and

amortization is calculated on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets as

follows

Buildings 15 40
years

Leasehold improvements Shorter of lease term or 15 years

Furniture and equipment 10 years

Other Real Estate Owned

Assets acquired through or in lieu of loan foreclosure are held for sale and are initially recorded at fair value less

estimated costs to sell at the date of foreclosure establishing new cost basis Subsequent to foreclosure

valuations are periodically performed by management to ensure the assets are carried at fair value less cost to sell

If there are subsequent declines in fair value the assets are written down to its then current fair value through

charge to operations Revenue and expenses from operations and the impact of any subsequent changes in the

carrying value are included in other noninterest expense

Stock in Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta

As requirement for membership the Company invests in stock of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta

FHLB At December 31 2009 and 2008 the balance of FHLB stock held by the Company was $2.3 million

and $2.0 million respectively Due to the redemption provisions of the FHLB the Company estimated that fair

value equals cost and that this investment was not impaired at December 31 2009

Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes are recognized for the tax consequences of temporary differences between financial

statement carrying amounts and the tax bases of existing assets and liabilities that will result in taxable or deductible

amounts in future years These temporary differences are multiplied by the enacted income tax rate expected to be in

effect when the taxes become payable or receivable The effect on deferred taxes of change in tax rates is

recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date Deferred tax assets are reduced if necessary

by the amount of such benefits that are not expected to be realized based on available evidence

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income Loss

Comprehensive income is defined as the change in equity during period for non-owner transactions and is

composed of net income and other comprehensive income loss Other comprehensive income includes revenues

expenses gains and losses that are excluded from earnings under current accounting standards As of and for the

years presented the components of other comprehensive income for the Company consisted of the unrealized gains

and losses net of taxes in the Companys available for sale securities portfolio

Accumulated other comprehensive income loss at December 31 2009 and 2008 consists of the following

2009 2008

Amounts in thousands

Unrealized holding losses securities available for sale 645 1438
Deferred income taxes 248 554

Net unrealized holding losses securities available

for sale 397 884

Total other accumulated other comprehensive loss 397 884
53



NoTEs To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

Stock Compensation Plans

U.S Generally Accepted Accounting Principals GAAP requires recognition of the cost of employee services

received in exchange for an award of equity instruments in the financial statements over the period the employee is

required to perform the services in exchange for the award usually the vesting period SFAS No 123R also

requires measurement of the cost of employee services received in exchange for an award based on the grant-date

fair value of the award GAAP also requires that excess tax benefits be reported as financing cash inflows rather

than as reduction of taxes paid which is included within operating cash flows

The Company awarded 99500 options in 2009 and recognized stock compensation expense of $332000 No stock

options were exercised during 2009 Cash flows provided by financing activities from the exercise of stock options

amounted to $0 $1.3 million and $279000 for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

Net Income Per Common Share

Basic and diluted net income per share has been computed based on the weighted average number of shares

outstanding during each period after retroactively adjusting for all applicable declared stock splits effected in the

form of stock dividends Diluted net income per share reflect additional shares of common stock that would have

been outstanding if dilutive potential common shares had been issued as well as any adjustment to income that

would result from the assumed issuance Stock options that have exercise prices greater than the average market

price of the common shares are considered antidilutive At December 31 2009 and December 31 2008 there were

269774 and 148228 antidilutive options respectively At December 31 2007 there were no antidilutive options

Basic and diluted net income per share have been computed based upon net income available to common

shareholders as presented in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations divided by the weighted

average number of common shares outstanding or assumed to be outstanding as summarized below

2009 2008 2007

Weighted average number of common shares used in

computing basic net income per share 4927828 4915350 4548565

Effect of dilutive stock options 2.482 1.526 303.172

Weighted average number of common shares and dilutive

potential common shares used in computing diluted

net income per share 4.930.310 4.916876 4.851738

Segment Reporting

GAAP requires management to report selected financial and descriptive information about reportable operating

segments It also establishes standards for related disclosures about products and services geographic areas and

major customers Generally disclosures are required for segments internally identified to evaluate performance and

resource allocation In all material respects the Companys operations are entirely within the commercial banking

segment and the consolidated financial statements presented herein reflect the results of that segment Also the

Company has no foreign operations or customers
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NOTES To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

Reclassification

Prior period amounts may have been reclassified for proper presentation For the year-ended December 31 2009

loss on the sale of other real estate owned was classified as non-interest
expense

item To remain consistent with

the presentation and classification of the items included in the consolidated statements of operations for the years

ended December 31 2008 and 2007 gain on sale of other real estate was reclassified from non-interest income to

non-interest expense The reclassification has no effect on net income available to common shareholders for either

period presented

Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through February 25 2010 which is the date of financial statement

issuance

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2009 the FASB issued SFAS No 166 Accounting for Transfers of Financial Assets an amendment of

FASB Statement No 140 which was subsequently codified by the FASB under ASC Topic 860 Topic 860
Topic 860 seeks to improve the relevance representational faithfulness and comparability of the information that

reporting entity provides in its financial statements about transfer of financial assets the effects of transfer on its

financial position financial performance and cash flows and transferors continuing involvement if any in

transferred financial assets Specifically Topic 860 eliminates the concept of qualifying special-purpose entity

creates more stringent conditions for reporting transfer of portion of financial asset as sale clarifies other

sale-accounting criteria and changes the initial measurement of transferors interest in transferred financial assets

SFAS No 166 as codified under ASC Topic 860 is effective for financial asset transfers occurring after the

beginning of fiscal years beginning after November 15 2009 The Company does not anticipate that the adoption

of this statement will have material impact on its consolidated fmancial statements

In June 2009 the FASB issued SFAS No 167 Amendments to FASB Interpretation No 46R which was

subsequently codified by the FASB as ASC Topic 810 Topic 810-10 Topic 810 amends FASB Interpretation

No 46R Variable Interest Entities for determining whether an entity is variable interest entity VIE and

requires an enterprise to perform an analysis to determine whether the enterprises variable interest or interests give

it controlling financial interest in VIE Under Topic 810 an enterprise has controlling financial interest when it

has the power to direct the activities of VIE that most significantly impact the entitys economic performance

and the obligation to absorb losses of the entity or the right to receive benefits from the entity that could

potentially be significant to the VIE Topic 810 also requires an enterprise to assess whether it has an implicit

financial responsibility to ensure that VIE operates as designed when determining whether it has power to direct

the activities of the VIE that most significantly impact the entitys economic performance Topic 810 also requires

ongoing assessments of whether an enterprise is the primary beneficiary of VIE requires enhanced disclosures

and eliminates the scope exclusion for qualifying special-purpose entities SFAS No 167 as codified under ASC

Topic 810 is effective as of the beginning of fiscal
years beginning after November 15 2009 and is applied using

cumulative effect adjustment to retained earnings for any carrying amount adjustments The Company does not

anticipate that the adoption of this statement will have material impact on its consolidated financial statements

In January 2010 the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No 20 10-06 Fair Value Measurements

Disclosures which amends Subtopic 820-10 of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification to require new

disclosures for fair value measurements and provides clarification for existing disclosures requirements More

specifically this update will require an entity to disclose separately the amounts of significant transfers in and

out of Levels and fair value measurements and to describe the reasons for the transfers and information

about purchases sales issuances and settlements to be presented separately i.e present the activity on gross basis

rather than net in the reconciliation for fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs Level

inputs This update clarifies existing disclosure requirements for the level of disaggregation used for classes of

assets and liabilities measured at fair value and requires disclosures about the valuation techniques and inputs used
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to measure fair value for both recurring and nonrecurring fair value measurements using Level and Level inputs

The new disclosures and clarifications of existing disclosures are effective for interim and annual reporting periods

beginning after December 15 2009 except for the disclosures about purchases sales issuances and settlements in

the roll forward activity in Level fair value measurements Those disclosures are effective for fiscal years

beginning after December 15 2010 and for interim periods within those fiscal years The Company does not

anticipate that the adoption of this statement will materially expand its consolidated financial statement footnote

disclosures

From time to time the FASB issues
exposure

drafts for proposed statements of financial accounting standards Such

exposure drafts are subject to comment from the public to revisions by the FASB and to final issuance by the FASB

as statements of fmancial accounting standards Management considers the effect of the proposed statements on the

consolidated financial statements of the Company and monitors the status of changes to and proposed effective

dates of exposure drafts

Note Investment Securities

The following is summary of investment securities by major classification at December 31 2009 and 2008

December 31 2009

Gross Gross

Amortized unrealized unrealized Fair

cost gains losses value

Amounts in thousands

Securities available for sale

U.S government agency securities 12113 13 69 12057

Mortgage-backed securities 23690 1246 19 24917

Private label CMOs 5683 713 4976

State and municipal 29379 191 1121 28449

Subordinated debentures 500 180 320

Total 71365 1.456 2.102 70.719

December 31 2008

Gross Gross

Amortized unrealized unrealized Fair

cost gains losses value

Amounts in thousands

Securities available for sale

U.S government agency securities 2500 33 2533

Mortgage-backed securities 50066 669 304 50431

State and municipal 19293 1686 17607

Subordinated debentures 703 150 553

Total 72562 102 2140 71.124
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Information pertaining to securities with gross unrealized losses at December 31 2009 and 2008 aggregated by

investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in continuous loss position follows

2009

Securities available for sale

U.S government agency securities

Mortgage-backed securities

Private label CMOs
State and municipal

Subordinated debentures

Total temporarily impaired

securities

7095 69

2039 19

12 Months or More

value losses

Amounts in thousands

-s

Other than
temporary impairment

Private label CMOs
Total other than temporarily

impaired securities

1.051 153

1.051 153

729 155

729 155

2008

1780 308

1.780 308

Securities available for sale

U.S government agency securities

Mortgage-backed securities

State and municipal

Subordinated debentures 350 _________

Total temporarily impaired

securities 23.135 1.799

12 Months or More

Fair Unrealized

value losses

Amounts in thousands

-$ -$ -$
576 21 6671

917 320 17607

350 _________

1.493 341 24.628 2.140

The Company had 33 securities with gross unrealized losses at December 31 2009 These securities include three

U.S government agency one mortgage-backed seven private label collateralized mortgage obligations 21 state and

municipal and one subordinated debenture Management feels that the unrealized loss is attributable to limited

market for trading these types of securities and the interest rate spreads None of the unrealized losses identified on

temporarily impaired securities as of December 31 2009 or 2008 relate to the issuers ability to honor redemption

obligations or the marketability of the securities

The aggregate amortized cost and fair value of debt securities at December 31 2009 by remaining contractual

maturity are shown below Actual expected maturities for may differ from contractual maturities because issuers

may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties

Less Than 12 Months

Fair

value

Unrealized

losses

Total

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

value losses

9042

2295

273 7384

320

7095

2039

405 2295

848 16426

180 320

18.176 361

69

19

405

1121

180

9.999 1.433 28.175 1.794

Less Than

Fair

value

12 Months

Unrealized

losses

Fair

value

Total

Unrealized

losses

-$
6095

16690

283

1366

150

304

1686

150
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Available for Sale

Amortized Fair

cost value

Amounts in thousands

U.S agency securities

Due in year or less

Due in year through years ... 1013 1012

Due after years through 10 years 11100 11045

Due after 10 years

State and municipal securities

Due in year or less

Due in year through years 5083 4949

Due after
years through 10 years 10892 10675

Due after 10
years 13404 12825

Subordinated debentures

Due after 10 years
500 320

Other equity securities

Private label CMOs 5683 4976

Mortgage-backed securities 23690 24917

Total 71.365 70.719

Proceeds from sales of investment securities available for sale amounted to $36.2 million $44.7 million and $31.7

million for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively Aggregate gross realized gains from

the sales of investment securities available for sale amounted to $406000 $29000 and $8000 for the years ended

December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively Gross realized losses from the sale of investment securities

available for sale amounted to $217000 $0 and $0 for the year-s ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

Realized losses from the impairment of private label mortgage backed securities amounted to $148000 for the year

ended December 31 2009 and $490000 for the year ended December 31 2008 resulting from increased default

rates on underlying collateral payments and credit rating deterioration

Debt securities were divided into two groups those rated investment grade by at least one nationally-recognized

rating agency and those rated below investment grade by all nationally-recognized agencies Impairment of debt

securities consistently rated investment grade is considered temporary unless specific contrary information is

identified None of the debt securities consistently rated investment grade were considered to be other-than-

temporarily impaired at December 31 2009

At December 31 2009 approximately $2.7 million based on amortized cost before impairment charges of our

taxable portfolio consisting of two private label mortgage-backed securities and one subordinated debenture was

rated below investment grade by all nationally-recognized rating agencies Five municipal securities with total

amortized cost of $4.8 million and which previously were AAA rated had become non-rated as result of insurance

guarantors credit quality concerns At December 31 2009 the aggregate unrealized loss on the private label

mortgage-backed securities subordinated debenture and municipal securities totaled $1.3 million before recognition

of any other-than-temporary impairment charges Impairment of securities rated below investment grade were

evaluated to determine if we expect to recover the entire amortized cost basis of the security This evaluation for the

private label CMOs was based on projections of estimated cash flows based on individual loans underlying each

security using current and anticipated increases in unemployment and default rates decreases in housing prices and

increases in loss severity at foreclosure The evaluation of the subordinated debentures and municipal securities was

based on an analysis of the issuers financial statements debt service reserves past debt service performance as well

as other factors
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The primary assumptions used in this evaluation were

Prepayments starting with current refinancing and payoff prepayment vector statistics based on information

derived from the trustee The bonds prepayment vectors anticipates VPR for 15 months and then returning to

historical norms of VPR to maturity

Default rate The model takes the consumer default rate from the mortgage backed bonds month average default

rate from 5% for one private label CMO and 15% for the second private label CMO over the next 12 months and

down to 3.7% through maturity

Loss severity estimated foreclosure rates are 35% for one private label CMO and 45% for the second private label

CMO for the next twelve months After 12 months reversion to more typical 25% severity rate for one CMO and

35% for the second CMO Loss severity includes estimated holding and disposal expenses

Discount rates estimated cash flows were discounted at rates that range from 5.50% to 6.00% based on our

purchase yields of the two private label CMOs analyzed

The evaluation uses an adjusted loan to value ratio as part of our evaluation of whether the unrealized losses on

these securities are temporary or other-than-temporary The adjusted loan to value ratio is based on the original loan

to value ratio inherent in the security adjusted for changes in housing prices prepayment speeds default rates and

credit enhancements higher adjusted loan to value ratio indicates greater likelihood that projected cash flows

may result in losses shortfall between our current amortized cost and the present value of expected cash flows we

are likely to collect based on all available information is referred to as the credit loss which is the amount

recognized in net income

The evaluation of previously recognized other-than-temporary impairment at December 31 2008 was $490000 In

accordance with the provision set forth in ASC 320-10-65-1 of the other-than-temporary impairment charge

recognized in 2008 $343000 was determined to relate to other non-credit-related factors in the market place This

resulted in an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings with corresponding adjustment to

accumulated other comprehensive income in the amount of $211000 net of tax effect

Based on our evaluation two securities were identified with other-than-temporary impairment at December 31
2009 For the year-ended December 31 2009 total other than temporary impairment losses totaled $456000 and of

this amount estimated credit losses totaled $148000 on these securities which were charged against earnings The

difference between total unrealized losses and estimated credit losses on these securities was charged against

accumulated other comprehensive income net of deferred taxes

The following table shows roll forward of the amount related to credit losses recognized on debt securities held by

the Company for which portion of an other-than-temporary impairment was recognized in other comprehensive

income

Twelve Months Ended

December 31 2009

Amounts in thousands

Balance of credit losses on debt securities

at the beginning of the period 147

Additional increase related to the credit loss

for which an other-than-temporary impairment

was previously recognized 148

Balance of credit losses on debt securities

at the end of the current period 295
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At December 31 2009 the balance of Federal Home Loan Bank FHLB of Atlanta stock held by the Company is

$2.3 million On March 25 2009 and May 2009 FHLB announced that it would not pay dividend for the

fourth quarter of 2008 or first quarter of 2009 respectively reflecting conservative financial management

approach in light of continued volatility in the financial markets On February 27 2009 FHLB announced that it

would increase the Subclass membership stock requirement cap from $25 million to $26 million and approve

excess activity-based stock repurchases on quarterly review cycle instead of daily in order to facilitate capital

management On August 12 2009 the FHLB announced an annualized dividend rate of 0.84 percent which was

paid on August 14 2009 On October 30 2009 the FHLB announced an annualized dividend rate for the third

quarter ended September 30 2009 of 0.41 percent which was credited to members accounts on November 2009

Given all this management believes that its investment in FHLB stock was not other-than-temporarily impaired as

of December 31 2009 or December 31 2008 Further there can be no assurance that the impact of recent or future

legislation on the Federal Home Loan Banks will not cause decrease in the value of the FHLB stock held by the

Company

Investment securities with amortized cost of $23.9 million and fair value of $23.0 million at December 31 2009

were pledged to secure both financing from the FHLB and for public monies on deposit as required by law

Note Loans

Following is summary of loans at December 31 2009 and 2008

2009 2008

Amounts in thousands

Real estate

Construction loans 67635 91933

Commercial mortgage loans 174926 156333

Home equity lines of credit 44627 43290

Residential mortgage loans 81377 71595

Total real estate loans 368565 365151

Commercial and industrial loans 64173 63239

Loans to individuals for household

family and other personal expenditures 5383 6306

Unamortized net deferred loan origination fees costs 34 34

Total loans 438.087 434.662

The recorded investment in loans on nonaccrual status was $7.3 million and $3.1 million as of December 31 2009 and

2008 respectively At December 31 2009 and 2008 the recorded investment in loans considered impaired totaled

$11.0 million and $4.0 million respectively Impaired loans of $8.2 million and $3.3 million at December 31 2009 and

2008 had corresponding valuation allowances of $1.2 million and $520000 respectively At December 31 2009 $2.6

million of the $8.2 million of impaired loans was attributed to two troubled debt restructurings TDRs and represented

$597000 of the $1.2 valuation allowance The two TDRs are accruing interest as of December 31 2009 There were

no TDRs at December 31 2008 Impaired loans of $2.8 million and $704000 at December 31 2009 and 2008 had no

valuation allowances For the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 the average recorded investment in

impaired loans was approximately $5.7 million $2.9 million and $1.1 million respectively The amount of interest

recognized on impaired loans during the portion of the year that they were impaired was not material

The Companys lending is concentrated primarily in Alamance and Guilford Counties and the surrounding areas The

Company had loan and deposit relationships with most of its directors and executive officers and with companies with

which certain directors and executive officers are associated The following is reconciliation of loans directly

outstanding to executive officers directors and their affiliates amounts in thousands

Balance at December 31 2008 9788

New loans 1905

Principal repayments 2034

Balance at December 31 2009 9.659
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As matter of policy these loans and credit lines are approved by the Banks Board of Directors and are made with

interest rates terms and collateral requirements comparable to those required of other borrowers In the opinion of

management these loans do not involve more than the normal risk of collectibility

Note Allowance for Loan Losses

An analysis of activity in the allowance for loan losses for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

follows

2009 2008 2007

Amounts in thousands

Balance at beginning of year 5632 4462 4222
Provision for loan losses 4455 1665 425

Charge-offs 3025 533 296
Recoveries 245 38 111

Net charge-offs 2.780 495 185

Balance at end of
year 7.307 5.632 4462

Note Premises and Equipment

The following is summary of premises and equipment

2009 2008

Amounts in thousands

Land 1864 1864

Buildings and leasehold improvements 5458 5466
Furniture and equipment 2338 2.207

9660 9537

Less accumulated depreciation 2.597 2.082

Total 7.063 7.455

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 amounted to approximately $577000

$444000 and $422000 respectively

Note Time Deposits

Time deposits in denominations of $100000 or more were $227.9 million and $245.7 million at December 31 2009

and 2008 respectively Interest
expense on such deposits aggregated approximately $6.6 million and $9.8 million in

2009 and 2008 respectively Related party deposits totaled $8.0 million at December 31 2009 Time deposits in

denominations of $100000 or more maturing subsequent to December 31 2009 are as follows amounts in

thousands

2010 119427

2011 75595
2012 29075
2013

3.036

227.133
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Note Leases

As of December 31 2009 the Company leases office space under non-cancelable operating leases Future minimum

lease payments required under the leases are as follows amounts in thousands

Year Ending December 31

2010 388

2011

2012

2013 329

2014 329

Thereafter 1316

3.050

The leases contain options for renewals after the expiration of the current lease terms The cost of such rentals is

not included above Total rent expense
for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 amounted to

$387000 $189000 and $135000 respectively

Note Borrowings

Short-term borrowings

The Company has remaining credit availability totaling approximately $142.2 million from the FHLB with no short

term outstanding balances at December 31 2009 or December 31 2008 The Company also has credit availability

totaling approximately $72.6 million from the Federal Reserve Bank FRB with no short term outstanding

balances at December 31 2009 or December 31 2008 Any outstanding borrowings held by the Bank are

appropriately collateralized The Company had $520000 short-term borrowings at the daily rate of 0.25% with

Pacific Coast Bankers Bank at December 31 2009 The balance was outstanding for one day The Company had no

short-term balances outstanding at December 31 2008

Long-term debt

The Company is member of the FHLB As member the Company is required to invest in the stock of the FHLB

The stock is carried at cost since it has no quoted fair value All stock in the FHLB together with various

investment securities and blanket lien of $110.8 million on qualifying loans are pledged as collateral to secure any

borrowings At December 31 there were the following borrowings

Fixed

Maturity Interest Rate 2009 2008

Amounts in thousands

March 172010 5.92% 1500 1500

March 17 2010 5.71% 2500 2500

September 21 2010 3.98% 6000 6000

February 28 2011 2.37% 5000 5000

November 30 2017 2.98% 10.000 10000

25000 25.000

At December 31 2009 and 2008 the weighted average interest rates on the above advances were 3.54% and 3.54%

respectively The above borrowings have been classified as long-term debt in the balance sheet

The Company has issued $8.8 million of Junior Subordinated debentures to its wholly owned capital trusts

MidCarolina and MidCarolina Trust II to fully and unconditionally guarantee
the preferred securities issued by

the Trusts These long term obligations which currently qualify as Tier capital for the Company constitute full
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and unconditional guarantee by the Company of the Trusts obligations under the Capital Trust Securities The

trusts are not consolidated in the Companys fmancial statements

description of the Junior Subordinated debentures outstanding payable to the trusts is as follows

Amounts in thousands

Date of Interest Maturity Principal Amount

Issuing Entity Issuance Rate Date 2009 2008

MidCarolina 10/29/2002 Libor plus 11/07/2032 5155 5155
3.45%

12/03/2003 Libor plus _______ 3609

2.90%

8764 8.764

The Company is able to repay the debt five
years after the issuance date

Note Income Taxes

The significant components of the provision for income taxes are as follows for the years ended December 31

Current tax provision

Federal

State
____________ ____________ ____________

Deferred tax provision benefit

Federal

State ____________ ____________ ____________

Net provision for income taxes
_____________ _____________ _____________

reconciliation of expected income taxes at the statutory federal income tax rate of 34% with the recorded

provision for income taxes follows

2009 2008 2007

Amounts in thousands

Income tax at statutory rate

Increase decrease in income tax resulting from

State income taxes net of federal tax effect

Income from bank-owned life insurance

Nontaxable interest

Other

Provision for income taxes

1086 1841 2458

MidCarolina Trust II 10/07/2033 3609

2009 2008 2007

Amounts in thousands

1521 1836 1787
411 478 417

1.932 2314 2204

927 458 112

187 115 26

1114 573 138

818 1.741 2.342

148 240 293

97 102 99
349 246 286

30 24

818 1.741 2.342
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The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of deferred tax assets liabilities at

December 31 were are follows

2009 2008

Amounts in thousands

Deferred tax assets relating to

Allowance for loan losses 2709 2032

Deferred compensation 496 423

Impairment 114 57

Write-downs of other real estate owned 114

Nonqualified stock options 108

Other 37 27

Unrealized holding losses on investments

available for sale 248 687

Total deferred tax assets 3.826 3.225

Deferred tax liabilities relating to

Property and equipment 127 171
Deferred loan fees 163 189
Other

Total deferred tax liabilities 290 364

Net recorded deferred tax asset 3.536 2.86

It is the Banks policy to recognize interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax positions as components of

income taxes There were no interest or penalties accrued during the year The Banks federal and state income tax

returns are subject to examination for the years 2006 2007 and 2008

Note Savings Plan

The Company maintains contributory savings plan under Section 401k of the Internal Revenue Code covering

all employees who have completed three months of service and are at least eighteen years
of age Under the plan

employee contributions are matched by the Company in an amount equal to 100% of the first 6% of compensation

contributed by the employee Total savings plan expense for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

was $114000 $223000 and $208000 respectively

Note Stock Options

During 2008 the Board of Directors and shareholders of the Bank approved Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan for

certain original directors of the Bank and 250000 shares of authorized and unissued stock were reserved for award

In 2008 the Board of Directors and shareholders of the Bank amended the Incentive Stock Option Plan for officers

and key employees originally approved in 2004 to increase the number of shares available for award by 159571

Under the provisions of the Plan grants are made at the discretion of an administrative committee appointed by the

Board of Directors at the fair value of the stock on the date of grant The Board originally reserved 326700 shares

of authorized and unissued stock for grant

In 2004 the Board of Directors and shareholders of the Company approved the MidCarolina Financial Corporation

Omnibus Stock Ownership and Long Term Incentive Plan 2004 Omnibus Plan for officers and key employees

Under the provisions of the 2004 Omnibus Plan Rights as defined in the 2004 Omnibus Plan are awarded at the

discretion of an administrative committee appointed by the Board of Directors at the fair value of the stock on the

date of grant The Board reserved 412500 shares of authorized and unissued stock for grant

summary of the Companys stock option activity and related information for the years ended December 31 2007

reflecting the effects of stock splits in the form of stock dividends declared including the 25% stock split in the

64



NOTES To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

form of stock dividend declared in December 2006 and distributed in January 2007 the 10% stock split in the

form of stock dividend declared in May 2006 and distributed in June 2006 the 25% stock split in the form of

stock dividend distributed in November 2005 and the 20% stock split in the form of stock dividend declared in

2004 and distributed in 2005

Outstanding Options Exercisable Options

Average Aggregate

Number Exercise Number Exercise

shares Price shares Price

AtDecember3l 2008 295929 9.04 219252 9.13

Options granted/vested 99500 7.25 89538 7.25

Options exercised

Options forfeited

Outstanding at December31 2009 359.429 8.59 308790 8.70

The weighted average remaining contractual term of options outstanding and options exercisable at December 31

2009 is 6.93 years and 6.43 years respectively

The estimated per share fair value of options granted together with the assumptions used in estimating these fair

values are displayed below

2009 2008 2007

Estimated fair value of options granted 2.87 3.16 3.60

The risk-free interest rate is based upon U.S Treasury instrument with life that is similar to the expected life of

the option grant Expected volatility is based upon the historical volatility of the Company based upon the previous

years trading history The expected term of the options is based upon the average life of previously issued stock

options The expected dividend yield is based upon current yield on date of grant No post-vesting restrictions exist

for these options The following table illustrates the assumptions for the Black-Scholes model used in determining

the fair value of options granted to employees in the
year ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

The estimated average per share fair value of options granted using the Black-Scholes methodology together with

the assumptions used in estimating those fair values are displayed below

2009 2008 2007

Assumptions in estimating option values

Risk-free rate 2.40% 3.22% 4.7 1%
Dividend yield 0% 0% 0%

Volatility 30.13% 29.26% 26.87%

Expected life 8.0 years 6.5 years years

For the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 the intrinsic value of options exercised was approximately

2009 2008 2007

2.6 million 971000

There were no options exercised during 2009 Cash received from options exercised under all share-based payment

arrangements for years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 were approximately $792000 and $279000
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respectively The actual tax benefit in shareholders equity realized for the tax deduction from option exercise in the

share-based payment arrangements totaled $498000 for the year ended December 31 2008

The unrecognized compensation expense for outstanding options at December 31 2009 was $576000 which will be

recognized over the vesting period of each award

Note Officers Deferred Compensation

In 2002 the Company implemented non-qualifing deferred compensation plan for certain key executive officers

The Company has purchased life insurance policies on the participating officers in order to offset the cost of benefit

payments Benefits for each officer participating in the plan will accrue and vest during the period of employment

and will be paid in monthly benefit payments over the participants life after retirement The plan also provides for

payment of disability or death benefits in the event participating officer becomes permanently disabled or dies

while employed at the Bank Provisions of $192000 in 2009 $180000 in 2008 and $278000 in 2007 were

expensed for future benefits to be provided under this plan The total liability under this plan w-as 1.3 million at

December 31 2009 and $1.1 million at December 31 2008 and is included in accrued
expenses

and other liabilities

in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition

Note Employment Agreement

The Company has entered into employment agreements with certain key officers to ensure stable and competent

management base In the event of change in control of the Company as defined in the agreements the acquirer

will be bound to the terms of the agreements

Note 0- Contingent Liabffities and Commitments

The Companys consolidated financial statements do not reflect various commitments and contingent liabilities

which arise in the normal course of business and which involve elements of credit risk interest rate risk and

liquidity risk These commitments and contingent liabilities are commitments to extend credit letters of credit and

commitments to sell loans

summary of the Companys commitments and contingent liabilities at December 31 2009 is as follows amounts

in thousands

2009

Unfunded commitments to extend credit under

existing equity line and commercial lines of credit 64556

Commitments to sell loans held for sale 228

Financial standby letters of credit net 2865

Commitments to originate new loans or extend credit and letters of credit all include exposure to some credit loss in

the event of nonperformance by the customer The Companys credit policies and procedures for credit

commitments are the same as those for extensions of credit that are recorded in the balance sheets Because these

instruments have fixed maturity dates and because many of them expire without being drawn upon they do not

generally present any significant liquidity risk to the Company The Company has not incurred any losses on its

commitments in 2009 2008 or 2007

The capital and credit markets have experienced volatility for more than year More recently the volatility and

disruption has increased and the markets have produced downward pressure on stock prices and credit availability

for many issuers without regard to their underlying financial strength This has been particularly the case with

respect to financial institutions and the market prices of the stock of financial services companies in general

including the Companys are at their lowest levels in recent history If current levels of market disruption and

volatility continue or worsen there can be no assurance that we will not experience an adverse effect which may be

material on the Companys ability to access capital and on our business financial condition and results of

operations
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Commitments to sell loans held for sale are agreements to sell loans to third party at an agreed upon price The

aggregate fair value of the commitments is immaterial

Financial standby letters of credit are conditional lending commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the

performance of customer to third party Those letters of credit are primarily issued to support public and private

borrowing arrangements Essentially all letters of credit issued have expiration dates within one year The credit

risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loan facilities to

customers

Note Shareholders Equity

Regulatory Matters

As North Carolina banking corporation the Bank may pay cash dividends to the Company only out of undivided

profits as detennined pursuant to North Carolina banking laws However regulatory authorities may limit payment

of dividends when it is determined that such limitation is in the public interest and is necessary to ensure banks

financial soundness

The Bank is subject to the capital requirements of the FDIC The FDIC requires the Bank to maintain minimum

ratios of Tier capital to total risk-weighted assets and total capital to risk-weighted assets of 4% and 8%
respectively To be well-capitalized the FDIC requires ratios of Tier capital to risk-weighted assets and total

capital to risk-weighted assets of 6% and 10% respectively Tier capital consists of total shareholders equity

calculated in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America less

intangible assets and total capital is comprised of Tier capital plus certain adjustments the only one of which

applicable to the Bank is the allowance for loan losses Risk-weighted assets refer to the on- and off-balance sheet

exposures of the Bank adjusted for their relative risk levels using formulas set forth in FDIC regulations The Bank

is also subject to FDIC leverage capital requirement which calls for minimum ratio of Tier capital to quarterly

average total assets of 4% and ratio of 5% to be well-capitalized

As of December 31 2009 and 2008 the Banks capital ratios exceeded levels deemed well-capitalized under the

regulatory framework for prompt corrective action There are no events or conditions since the notification that

management believes have changed the Banks category

For the Bank Minimum Requirements

Capital Capital For Capital To Be Well

Amount Ratio Adequacy Capitalized

Dollars in thousands

As of December 31 2009

Tier capital to risk-weighted assets 48436 10.54% 4.00% 6.00%

Total capital Tier II capital

to risk-weighted assets 54197 11.80% 8.00% 10.00%

Leverage Tier capital to average assets 48436 8.67% 4.00% 5.00%

As of December 31 2008

Tier capital to risk-weighted assets 46135 9.97% 4.00% 6.00%

Total capital Tier II capital

to risk-weighted assets 51767 11.19% 8.00% 10.00%

Leverage Tier capital to average assets 46135 8.68% 4.00% 5.00%

The Company is also subject to these capital requirements except for the prompt corrective action requirements of

the FDIC At December 31 2009 the Companys total capital to risk-weighted assets Tier capital to risk

weighted assets and Tier capital to average assets were 11.93% 10.67% and 8.79% respectively At December

31 2008 the Companys total capital to risk-weighted assets Tier capital to risk-weighted assets and Tier capital

to average assets were 11.27% 10.05% and 8.77% respectively
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Note Fair Value of Financial Instruments

ASC 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures requires company to disclose the fair value of its fmancial

instruments whether or not recognized in the balance sheet where it is practical to estimate that value

Fair value estimates are made at specific point in time based on relevant market information about the fmancial

instrument These estimates do not reflect any premium or discount that could result from offering for sale at one

time the Companys entire holding of particular fmancial instrument In cases where quoted market prices are not

available fair value estimates are based on judgments regarding future expected loss experience current economic

conditions risk characteristics of various financial instruments and other factors These estimates are subjective in

nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment and therefore cannot be determined with

precision Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the estimates In addition the tax ramifications related

to the realization of the unrealized gains and losses can have significant effect on fair value estimates and have not

been considered in the estimates Finally the fair value estimates presented herein are based on pertinent

information available to management as of December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of fmancial instruments

for which it is practicable to estimate that value

Cash and Due from Banks Federal Funds Sold and Interest-Earning Deposits

The carrying amounts for cash and due from banks federal funds sold and interest-earning deposits approximate

fair value because of the short maturities of those instruments These instruments are considered cash and cash

equivalents

Investment Securities

Fair value for investment securities excluding FHLB stock is based on quoted market price if such information is

available If quoted market price is not available fair value is estimated using quoted market prices for similar

securities The carrying value of FHLB stock approximates fair value based on the redemption provisions of the

FHLB

Loans Held for Sale

Fair values of mortgage loans held for sale are based on commitments on hand from investors or prevailing market

prices

Loans

For certain homogeneous categories of loans such as residential mortgages fair value is estimated using the quoted

market prices for securities backed by similar loans adjusted for differences in loan characteristics The fair value

of other types
of loans is estimated by discounting the future cash flows using the current rates at which similar

loans would be made to borrowers with similar credit ratings and for the same remaining maturities However the

values derived likely do not represent exit prices due to the distressed market conditions therefore incremental

market risks and liquidity discounts of approximately 2% were subtracted to reflect the illiquid and distressed

conditions at December 31 2009 There was no application of market and liquidity discounts reflected at December

31 2008

Investment in Life Insurance

The carrying value of life insurance approximates fair value because this investment is carried at cash surrender

value as determined by the insurer

Deposits Short-term Borrowings and Long-term Debt

Deposits and short-term borrowings without stated maturity or insignificant term to maturity including demand

interest bearing demand savings accounts and FHLB borrowings are reported at their carrying value No value has
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been assigned to the franchise value of deposits For other types of deposits and long-term debt with fixed rates

and longer maturities is estimated based upon the discounted value of projected future cash outflows using the rates

currently offered for instruments of similar remaining maturities

Accrued Interest Receivable and Accrued Interest Payable

The carrying amounts of accrued interest receivable and accrued interest payable are assumed to approximate fair

values

Financial Instruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk

With regard to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk discussed in Note it is not practicable to estimate

the fair value of future fmancing commitments

The following table presents the carrying values and estimated fair values of the Companys financial instruments at

December 31 2009 and 2008

Carrying Estimated

value fair value

Amounts in thousands

As of December 31 2009

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 9429 9429
Investment securities available for sale 70719 70719
Loans held for sale 228 228

Loans net 430780 424087
Federal Home Loan Bank stock 2322 2322
Investment in life insurance 8179 8179
Accrued interest receivable 2150 2150

Financial liabilities

Deposits 465020 462740
Short-term borrowings 520 520

Long-term debt 33674 34684
Accrued interest payable 485 485

As of December 31 2008

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 15734 15734

Investment securities available for sale 71124 71124
Loans held for sale

Loans net 429030 430502
Federal Home Loan Bank stock 1969 1969

Investment in life insurance 7893 7893
Accrued interest receivable 2108 2108

Financial liabilities

Deposits 467948 472000

Short-term borrowings

Long-term debt 33764 34244
Accrued interest payable 626 626
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Note Fair Value Measurements

The Company adopted FASBs Accounting Standards Codification ASC Topic 820 Fair Value Measurements

and Disclosures effective January 2009 which defines fair value establishes framework for measuring fair

value in GAAP and expands disclosures about fair value measurements The Company utilizes fair value

measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain assets and liabilities and to determine fair value

disclosures Securities available-for-sale are recorded at fair value on recurring basis From time to time the

Company may be required to record at fair value other assets on nonrecurring basis such as loans held for sale

and other real estate owned These nonrecurring fair value adjustments typically involve application of lower of cost

or market accounting write-downs of individual assets

The following is description of valuation methodologies used for assets and liabilities recorded at fair value

Investment Securities Available-for-Sale

Investment securities available-for-sale are recorded at fair value on recurring basis Fair value measurement is

based upon quoted prices if available If quoted prices are not available fair values are measured using independent

pricing models or other model-based valuation techniques such as present value of future cash flows adjusted for

the securitys credit rating prepayment assumptions and other factors such as credit loss assumptions Level

securities include those traded on an active exchange such as the New York Stock Exchange U.S Treasury

securities that are traded by dealers or brokers in active over-the-counter markets and money market funds Level

securities include mortgage-backed securities issued by government sponsored entities municipal bonds private

label collateralized mortgage obligations and corporate debt securities

Securities classified as Level include asset-backed securities and corporate debt securities in less liquid markets

Loans Held for Sale

Loans held for sale are carried at the lower of cost or market value The fair value of loans held for sale is based on

what secondary markets are currently offering for portfolios with similar characteristics As such the Company

classifies loans subject to nonrecurring fair value adjustments as Level

Loans

The Company does not record loans at fair value on recurring basis However from time to time loan is

considered impaired and an allowance for loan losses is established Loans for which it is probable that payment of

interest and principal will not be made in accordance with the contractual terms of the loan agreement are

considered impaired Once loan is identified as impaired management measures impairment on an individual

basis The fair value of impaired loans is estimated using one of several methods including collateral value market

value of similar debt enterprise value liquidation value and discounted cash flows Those impaired loans not

requiring an allowance represent loans for which the fair value of the expected repayments or collateral exceed the

recorded investments in such loans As of December 31 2009 the Bank identified $11.0 million in impaired loans

Of these impaired loans $8.2 million were identified to have impairment of $1.2 million for net fair value of $7.0

million At December 31 2008 loans with book value of $4.0 million were evaluated for impairment Of this

total $3.3 million required specific allowance totaling $520 thousand for net fair value of $2.8 million The

determination of impairment was based on the estimated fair market value of collateral for each loan determined

through the use of appraisals and subjected to further discounts by management which is considered to be Level

input

Other Real Estate Owned

Other real estate owned is adjusted to fair value at the date of transfer subject to future impairment Fair value is

based upon independent market prices appraised values of the collateral or managements estimation of the value of

the collateral When fair value of the collateral is based on an observable market price or current appraised value

the Company records the other real estate owned as nonrecurring Level When an appraised value is not available

or management determines the fair value of the collateral is further impaired below the appraised value and there is

no observable market price the Company records the other real estate owned as nonrecurring Level
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The following table summarizes quantitative disclosures about the fair value measurement for each category of

assets carried at fair value as of December 31 2009 Dollars in thousands

Quoted Prices in Significant Other Significant

Active Markets for Observable Unobservable

December 31 Identical Assets Inputs Inputs

Description 2009 Level Level Level

Available for sale securities

U.S Agency securities 12057 12057

Mortgage backed securities 24918 24918
Private label CMOs 4975 4975
State and municipal securities 28449 28449
Subordinated debenture 320 320

70719 70399 320

Impaired loans 7042 7042
Other real estate owned 2876 2876

The table below presents the balances of assets and liabilities measured at fair value as of December 31 2008 Dollars

in thousands

Fair Value Measurements at

December 31 2008 Using

Quoted Prices Significant

Assets/Liabilities in Active Other Significant

Measured at Markets for Observable Unobservable

Fair Value Identical Assets Input Inputs

Description 12/31/2008 Level Level Level

Available-for-sale securities 71124 68349 2775

Impaired loans 2821 2821
Foreclosed real estate 1608 1608

The table below presents reconciliation for the period of December 31 2008 to December 31 2009 for all Level

assets that are measured at fair value on recurring basis At December 31 2009 $2.3 million of securities were
transferred from Level to Level resulting from enhanced measurement capabilities of third party valuations

Available-for-sale

securities

Dollars in thousands

Beginning Balance December 31 2008 2775
Total realized and unrealized gains or losses

Included in earnings 130
Included in other comprehensive income

Purchases issuances and settlements

Transfers in out of Level 2.325

Ending Balance December 31 2009 320
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Note Parent Company Financial Data

The Companys condensed statement of financial condition as of December 31 2009 and 2008 and its related

condensed statements of operations and cash flows for the three year period ended December 31 2009 are as

follows

Condensed Statement of Financial Condition

December 31 2009 and 2008

Amounts in thousands

2009 2008

Assets

Investment in subsidiaries 48302 45516

Other assets 698 550

Total assets 4Q 46.066

Liabilities and Shareholders Equity

Liabilities

Junior subordinated debentures 8764 8764

Other liabilities 51 106

Total liabilities 8815 8870

Shareholders Equity

Preferred stock 4819 4819

Common stock 14958 14626

Retained earnings 20805 18635

Accumulated other comprehensive loss 397 884
Total shareholders equity 40.185 37196

Total liabilities and shareholders equity 49.000 46.066

Condensed Statements of Operations

Years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

Amounts in thousands

2009 2008 2007

Undistributed earnings of subsidiaries 1755 3105 4354

Subsidiary dividend income 980 1140 1155

Interest expense 359 571 742
Income tax benefit

120

Net income 2376 3674 4887

Dividends on preferred stock 417 417 417

Net income available to common shareholders 1.959 L22 4A2S
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NOTES To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

Condensed Statements of Cash Flow

Years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

Amounts in thousands

2009 2008 2007

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income 2376 3674 4887
Adjustments to reconcile net income to

net cash used by operating activities

Equity in undistributed earnings of

subsidiaries 1755 3105 4354
Stock compensation expense 332 46 14

Amortization

Increase in other assets 157 144 117
Increase decrease in other liabilities 55 18

Net cash provided by operating

activities 750 462 431

Cash flows from investing activities

Capital contributions to bank subsidiary 333 1.335 283

Net cash used by investing activities 333 1.335 283

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from exercise of stock options 792 279

Tax benefit from exercise of stock options 498

Purchase of fractional common shares 10

Non-cumulative perpetual preferred stock

dividends paid 417 417 417

Net cash used provided by financing activities 417 873 148

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents beginning

Cash and cash equivalents ending
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Item CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND

FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

N/A

Item 9A DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The Companys management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective disclosure controls and

procedures as defined under Rules 3a- 15e and 5d- 15e of the Exchange Act As of December 31 2009 an

evaluation was performed under the supervision and with the participation of the Companys management

including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the effectiveness of the design and operation of

the Companys disclosure controls and procedures Based on that evaluation the Chief Executive Officer and Chief

Financial Officer concluded that the Companys disclosure controls and procedures were effective at December 31

2009 to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed by the Company in reports it files

under the Exchange Act is recorded processed summarized and reported on timely basis

MANAGEMENTS REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over fmancial reporting for

the Company The Companys internal control over fmancial reporting is process designed under supervision of

the Companys Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of the Companys financial statements for external reporting

purposes in accordance with U.S generally accepted accounting principles Management has made comprehensive

review evaluation and assessment of the Companys internal control over fmancial reporting as of December 31

2009 In making its assessment of internal control over financial reporting management used the criteria issued by

the Commission Sponsoring Organization of the Treadway Commission COSO in Internal Control-Integrated

Framework Based on this assessment management believes that as of December 31 2009 the Companys internal

control over financial reporting is effective In accordance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

management makes the following assertions

Management has implemented process to monitor and assess both design and operating effectiveness of

internal control over financial reporting

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk

that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance

with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

This Annual Report on Form 10-K does not include an attestation report of the Companys registered public

accounting firm regarding internal control over financial reporting Managements report was not subject to

attestation by the Companys registered public accounting firm pursuant to temporary
rules of the SEC that permit

the Company to provide only Managements report in this Annual Report on Form 10-K

CHANGES IN INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

In connection with the above evaluation of the Companys disclosure controls and procedures no change in the

Companys internal control over financial reporting was identified that occurred during the quarter ended December

31 2009 that has materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect the Companys internal control

over financial reporting

Item 9B OTHER INFORMATION

None
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PART III

Item 10 DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Directors and Executive Officers Information regarding the Companys directors and executive officers

under the headings Proposal Election of Directors and Executive Officers in the Companys definitive Proxy
Statement filed in connection with its 2010 Annual Meeting is incorporated into this Report by reference

Audit Committee Information regarding the Audit Committee of the Companys Board of Directors under

the captions Committees of Our Board General and Audit Committee in the Companys definitive Proxy
Statement filed in connection with its 2010 Annual Meeting is incorporated into this Report by reference

Audit Committee Financial Expert Information regarding the determination of the Companys Board of

Directors that its Audit Committee includes an audit committee financial expert under the caption Committees of
Our Board Audit Committee in the Companys definitive Proxy Statement filed in connection with its 2010

Annual Meeting is incorporated into this Report by reference

Code of Ethics Information regarding the Companys Code of Ethics that applies to its directors and to all

its executive officers including without limitation its principal executive officer and principal fmancial officer is

incorporated by reference from the information under the caption Code of Ethics in the Companys definitive

Proxy Statement filed in connection with its 2010 Annual Meeting

Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance Information regarding compliance by the

Companys directors executive officers and principal shareholders with the reporting requirements of Section 16a
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 under the caption Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting

Compliance in the Companys definitive Proxy Statement filed in connection with its 2010 Annual Meeting

incorporated into this Report by reference

Item 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information regarding compensation paid or provided to the Companys executive officers and directors

under the headings Executive Compensation and Director Compensation in the Companys definitive Proxy
Statement filed in connection with its 2010 Annual Meeting of Shareholders is incorporated into this Report by
reference

Item 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS
AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Beneficial Ownership of Securities Information regarding the beneficial ownership of the Companys
common stock by its directors executive officers and principal shareholders under the caption Beneficial

Ownership of Our Common Stock in the Companys definitive Proxy Statement filed in connection with its 2010

Annual Meeting is incorporated into this Report by reference
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Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans The following table summarizes

all compensation plans and individual compensation arrangements which were in effect on December 31 2009 and

under which shares of the Companys common stock have been authorized for issuance

EqUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

Number of shares Number of shares remaining

to be Issued upon Weighted-average available for future issuance under

exercise of exercise price of equity compensation plans excluding

Plan cateorv outstanding options outstandinn options shares reflected in column

Equity compensation plans

approved by security holders 395429 $8.59 425050

Equity compensation plans not

approved by security holders

Total 395429 $8.59 425050

Of the 395429 stock options outstanding under the Plans total of 315672 of those stock options have vested or are exercisable within 60 days

All per share data has been restated to reflect the effects of stock split effected in the form of 10% stock dividend in 2002 stock split effected in

the form of 20% stock dividend in 2003 and 2004 stock split effected in the form of 25% stock dividend in 2005 stock split effected in the

form of 10% stock dividend in 2006 and 25% stock split in the form of stock dividend in January 2007

Item 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS
AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

Related Person Transactions Information regarding transactions between the Company and its directors

executive officers and other related persons
under the caption Transactions with Related Persons in the

Companys definitive Proxy Statement filed in connection with its 2010 Annual Meeting is incorporated into this

Report by reference

Dfrector Independence Information regarding the Companys independent directors under the caption

Corporate Governance Director Independence in the Companys definitive Proxy Statement filed in connection

with its 2010 Annual Meeting is incorporated into this Report by reference

Item 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Information regarding services provided by and fees paid to the Companys independent accountants

under the caption Services and Fees During 2009 and 2008 in the Companys defmitive Proxy Statement filed in

connection with its 2010 Annual Meeting is incorporated into this Report by reference
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Part IV

Item 15 EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Financial Statements The following financial statements are included in Item of this report

Page No

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 45

Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition

as of December 31 2009 and 2008 46

Consolidated Statements of Operations

for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 47

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

for the
years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 48

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders Equity

for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 49

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 50

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 51

Exhibits An index listing exhibits that are being filed or furnished with or incorporated by reference into this

Report appears immediately following the signature page and is incorporated herein by reference
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant

has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

MIDCAROLINA FINANCIAL CORPORATION

Date Februaiy 25 2010 By Is CHARLES CANADAY JR

Charles Canaday Jr

President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by

the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Signature
12

Is CHARLES CANADAY President Chief Executive February 25 2010

Charles Canaday Officer and Director

Is CHRISTOPHER REDCAY Senior Vice President and February 25 2010

Christopher Redcay Chief Financial Officer

Is JAMES COPLAND III Chairman and Director February 25 2010

James Copland III

Is DEXTER BARBEE SR Director February 25 2010

Dexter Barbee Sr

Is THOMAS BOBO Director February 252010

Thomas Bobo

Is JAMES CROUCH JR Director February 25 2010

James Crouch Jr

Is THOMAS CHANDLER Director February 25 2010

Thomas Chandler

Is ANTHONY HOLT Director February 25 2010

Anthony Holt

Is HORNADAY Vice Chairman and Director February 25 2010

F.D Hornaday III

Is TEENA KOURY Director February 25 2010

Teena Koury

Is JOHN LOVE Director February 25 2010

John Love

Is JAMES POWELL Director February 25 2010

James Powell

Is JOHN ROBERTS Director February 25 2010

John Roberts

Is JAMES SMITH JR Director February 25 2010

James Smith Jr

Is GEORGE WALDREP.JR Director February 25 2010

George Waldrep Jr

Is ROBERT WARD Director February 25 2010

Robert Ward
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit No DescriDtion

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3i to the

Exhibit
Form 8-A12G filed with the SEC on June 2002 as amended on August 15 2005 by Articles of

Amendment incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3i to the Form 8-K filed with the SEC on

August 29 2005

Exhibit 3.2 Bylaws incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3u to the Form 8-A12G filed with the SEC on June

2002

Exhibit 4.1 Form of Stock Certificate incorporated herein by reference to the Form l0-QSB filed with the SEC on
November 12 2002

Exhibit 4.2
Certain instruments defining the rights of the holders of long-term debt of the Company and of

subsidiaty

involving total amount of indebtedness not in excess of 10% of the total assets of the Company and its

subsidiaries on consolidated basis have not been filed as exhibits The Company hereby agrees to furnish

copy of any of these agreements to the SEC upon request

Exhibit 10.1 Bank Employee Stock Option Plan incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 6u to the Form 10-SB filed

with the FDIC on April 30 1998

Exhibit 10.2 Land Lease dated October 15 1997 between the Bank and Crescent Center Associates incorporated herein

by reference to Exhibit 0iv to the Form 0-KSB for the fiscal
year ended December 31 1998

Exhibit 10.3 Lease dated June 27 2000 between the Bank and Cum-Park Plaza LLC incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10v to the Form 10-KSB filed with the SEC for the fiscal year ended December 31 2000

Exhibit 10.4 Form of stock option award agreements for incentive stock options and nonqualified stock options granted
under the Omnibus Stock Ownership and Long-Term Incentive Plan incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.7 to the Form 10-KSB filed with the SEC on March 29 2006

Exhibit 10.5 Amendment of Stock Option Agreements granted under the Bank Employee Stock Option Plan incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to the Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 27 2005

Exhibit 10.6 Amendment of Stock Option Agreement with resale restrictions granted under the Bank Employee Stock

Option Plan incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.3 to the Form 8-K filed with the SEC on
December 27 2005

Exhibit 10.7 Employment Agreement dated May 27 2008 between the Company and Charles Canaday incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibits to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30 2008

Exhibit 10.8 Employment Agreement dated May 27 2008 between the Company and Christopher Redcay incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibits to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30 2008

Exhibit 10.9 Employment Agreement dated May 27 2008 between the Company and Craig Patterson

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibits to the Form lO-Q for the quarter ended June 30 2008

Exhibit 10.10 Salary Continuation Agreement dated May 27 2008 between the Company and Charles Canaday
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99s to the Form lO-Q for the quarter ended June 30 2008

Exhibit 10.11 Salary Continuation Agreement dated May 27 2008 between the Company and Christopher Redcay
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibits to the Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30 2008

Exhibit 10.12 Salary Continuation Agreement dated May 27 2008 between the Company and Craig Patterson

Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibits to the Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30 2008



Exhibit 10.13 Indemnification Agreement with directors incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Form 8-K

filed with the SEC on December 27 2005

Exhibt 10 14
2008 Director Stock Option Plan incorporated by reference from appendices to registrants Definitive Proxy

Statement filed with the Commission in connection with its 2008 Annual Meeting

Exhibit 10.15 Omnibus Stock Ownership and Long Term Incentive Plan as amended and restated as of January 2005

and as further amended on May 27 2008 incorporated by reference from appendices to registrants

Definitive Proxy Statement filed with the Commission in connection with its 2008 Annual Meeting

Exhibit 10.16 Form of Amendment to Endorsement Split Dollar Agreement between MidCarolina Bank and Charles

Canaday and ii Christopher Redcay dated December 2007 incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.01 to the Form 8-K filed with the SEC on March 21 2008

Exhibit 10.17 Form of Amendment to Endorsement Split Dollar Agreement between MidCarolina Bank and Craig

Patterson dated December 2007 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.01 to the Form 8-K filed

with the SEC on March 21 2008

Exhibit 14 Code of Ethics incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 14 to the Form 0-KSB for the fiscal
year

ended

December 31 2003

Exhibit 21 Schedule of Subsidiaries filed herewith

Exhibit 23 Consent of Dixon Hughes PLLC filed herewith

Exhibit 31.1 Rule 3a- 14a/i 5d-14a Certification by Chief Executive Officer filed herewith

Exhibit 31.2 Rule 3a- 14a/i 5d- 14a Certification by Chief Financial Officer filed herewith

Exhibit 32 Section 1350 Certifications filed herewith

COPIES OF EXHIBITS ARE AVAILABLE UPON WRITTEN REQUEST TO
Christopher Redcay

Chief Financial Officer

MidCarolina Financial Corporation

P.O Box 968

3101 South Church Street

Burlington NC 27215



SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

SHAREHOLDER CONTACT

Chris Redcay

Corporate Secretary

MidCarolina Financial Corporation

P0 Box 968

Burlington NC 27216

336-538-1600

Fax 336-538-1603

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Dixon Hughes PLLC

2501 Blue Ridge Road Suite 500

Raleigh NC 27607

STOCK TRANSFER AGENT

First Citizens Bank

P0 Box 29522

Raleigh NC 27626-0522

ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K

copy of MidCarolina Financial Corporations

2009 Annual Report on Form 10-K as filed with

the Securities Exchange Commission is available

without charge to shareholders upon written request

to Chris Redcay
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BURLINGTON OFFICES

South Church Street Office

3101 South Church Street

Alamance Regional Medical Center
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1107 South Fifth Street

GREENSBORO OFFICES
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Guilford College Office
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OTHER SERVICES

Mortgage Services

Mortgage Loan Specialists are available
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MidCarolina Telebanking

1-800-813-7678

MidCarolina Investment Services

3101 South Church Street

Burlington NC 27215

Online Banking Bill Pay Services

www.midcarotinabank.com
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